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9

10

•

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

11

Works and Environmental Management Committee meeting

12

is now in session.

13

Members, today we have two items on the agenda, and

14

I want to say thank you very much for showing up at

15

Baldwin High School at 7:30 this morning to observe

16

the traffic at that high school.

Today is November 28th, Monday.

For the members of the public, I'd like to

17

•

Good morning, Members, the Public

18

introduce the Committee Members that are here this

19

morning.

20

Committee, Michael Molinai Member Robert Carroll

21

from Hanai also Member Danny Mateo from Molokaii

22

excused this morning and he'll be coming in a little

23

later is our Chairman of the Council, Riki Hokama,

24

who is on his way back from his home island of

25

Lanai.

We do have the Vice-Chairman of the
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Staff, we do have Yvette Bantilan as well as

3

Richelle Kawasaki.

4

we do have the Director, Milton Arakawa. Entering

5

the chambers is Corporation Counsel Cindy Young.

6

Good morning.

From the Public Works Department

At this time the Chair would like to set the

8

tone of the meeting.

9

agenda this morning, and as I was going through, the

We do have two items on the

10

people that are here to do public testimony on the

11

bike tours -- and there's a lot of you out there --

12

I would like to change my public testimony agenda in

13

regards to old items.

14

public testimony on the first item on the agenda

15

this morning, which is restricting commercial

16

vehicles from using Front Street in Lahaina.

17

•

With us also this morning we do have our

2

7

•

4

At this time I'd like to have

So if there are any of you out there that

18

have signed up for public testimony on Front Street,

19

we'll take you first.

20

one -- ohl two/ people that are providing public

21

testimony, you do have three minutes to provide your

22

testimony, one minute to conclude.

23

your name and the organization that you represent,

24

we'd appreciate it.

25

I understand we just have

If you can state

Also, for the members of the public, if you
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1

could turn off your cell phones or put it on the

2

silent mode, as well as your pagers.

3

And state your name, please.

4

5

•

MS. PHLEGER:

. . BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY.

Yes, good morning.

I'm Nansy Phleger.

I

6

live at 322 Front Street.

7

of a minimum of 100 signatures I bring.

8

the residents and neighbors of the southern end of

9

Front Street, and we are concerned for the heavy

I represent a coalition
We're all

10

vehicles that are using Front Street as a bypass,

11

instead of reusing the main highway.

12

•

.

Thank you.

We're having huge beer delivery trucks racing

13

down the street at 7:30 in the morning.

14

fighting schoolchildren for space on that narrow

15

substandard -- technically substandard road, because

16

it's only 11 feet each lane, instead of the 12 feet.

17

So we have mothers with strollers, we have bicycle

18

riders, and we have the regular pedestrians[ people

19

who live along that whole area that are working in

20

town, getting to work themselves and there are very

21

huge buses, huge, heavy vehicles that are moving in,

22

usually well over the 20-mile-an-hour speed limit to

23

get to their destinations, and we request that those

24

trucks be limited to the major streets like

25

Lahainaluna or Puamana or Shaw Street -- I mean not
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1

Puamana, but I mean the Papalaua Street and that

2

Front Street be the residential, small, quiet,

3

little street that it was originally designed to be

4

and we can maintain it as such.
So we're not asking for sidewalks.

5
6

asking for anything fancy.

7

limit it to just the regular vehicular traffic, and

8

I know it's missing two feet in its width, but we

9

don't want to miss two feet of people who are trying

10
11
12

•

•

We're not

to walk down the street.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:

15

So mahalo.

Thank you, Nansy.

the testimony?

Any questions for

Thank you very much.

The next person to testify on this same item

13

14

But we are asking to

is Chris Brayton.
MS. BRAYTON:

Good morning.

My name is Chris Brayton.

I

16

live at 160 Pualei Drive in Puamana, and I'm

17

terrified of public speaking so I'll make it quick.

18

I agree with Nansy.

19

down Front Street every morning and the huge trucks

20

that are using Front Street are using it as a bypass

21

from the highway because they don't want to wait on

22

the highway, and you literally can feel the pavement

23

shake under your feet when they go by.

24

miles an hour.

25

a mirror going by our head.

My husband and I walk or bike

They go 45

We've all been very nearly missed by
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1

I personally have seen two bicyclists knocked

2

off of their bikes by trucks or buses who don't even

3

know they hit the person because they're taking the

4

whole road.

5

think, you know, once the highway problem is fixed,

6

it will be less tempting for them to speed down

7

Front Street, but until then, we'd like to see the

8

traffic restricted from Front Street so that the

9

pedestrians and the private traffic can be safer.

10

Thank you.

11
12

•

•

It's -- it's pretty terrifying, and I

. . . END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . . .

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Thank you.

Members, any questions for the testifier?

13

14

Thank you very much.

And I'd like to welcome Member

15

Johnson from Lahaina for being here this morning.

16

Good morning.

17

Is there anyone out there that would like to

18

testify on Item 12, which is Restricting Commercial

19

Vehicles from Using Front Street in Lahaina?

20

none coming up this morning { Members { if there's no

21

objection, I'd like to close public testimony on

22

PW-12.

23

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

24

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

No objections.
Thank you very much.

25
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3

RESTRICTING COMMERCIAL VEHICLES FROM USING
FRONT STREET (LAHAINA) (C.C. No. 05-136)

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

At this time I'd like to calIon the

4

Public Works Director, Milton Arakawa, to give a few

5

comments.
MR. ARAKAWA:

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

The bill before you

7

pertains to a request from Councilmember Johnson to

8

prohibit the operation of vehicles with a gross

9

weight of more than 10,000 pounds on a portion of

10

Front Street between its intersection with

11

Honoapiilani Highway at Puamana to Shaw Street.

12

Department of Public Works and Environmental

13

Management submitted its comments to the Committee

14

in a letter dated October 6th, 2005, and this letter

15

is in your binder.

16

•

PW-12

2

6

•

8

The

The Committee discussed this item at its

17

meeting of October 17th, 2005 and this was deferred

18

pending comments from the Traffic Safety

19

Council, several trucking companies, and Lahaina

20

community organizations.

21

a November 2, 2005 transmittal from the Traffic

22

Safety Council.

23

that there exists a posted restriction from

24

Honoapiilani Highway, which is the State highway,

25

onto Shaw Street for commercial vehicles.

Since then you've received

The transmittal basically noted
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1

Traffic Safety Council noted that this type of

2

restriction would increase traffic on other streets.

3

I do want to make a clarification that the posted

4

restriction for left turns for commercial vehicles

5

exists at Honoapiilani and Dickenson.
So that concludes our comments on this

6
7

8

matter, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Members, any questions for the Public Works

9

10
11

Director at this time?
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA:

12

•

Member Molina.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Good morning, Mr. Director.

You mention that

13

there's already an existing restriction posted and

14

the Traffic Council said that it would cause, I

15

guess, traffic in other areas.

16

this?

17

wholeheartedly supports, this proposed legislation?

18

•

Thank you, Director Arakawa.

MR. ARAKAWA:

What is your take on

Is this something that the Department

Councilmember Molina, we did support our

19

we did submit our comments to the Committee, and

20

basically our comments were that we had three

21

comments, basically.

22

traverse that portion of Front Street generally

23

would require a larger turning radius, and there is

24

that curve, the 90-degree curve on Front Street near

25

the Puamana area, and this may require large

Heavy vehicles that presently
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vehicles to approach or encroach into oncoming lanes

2

to negotiate that turn.

3

Second comment was that nearby roadways that

4

function as collectors between Front Street and

5

Honoapiilani Highway would see an increase of heavy

6

vehicle traffic as a result of the legislation being

7

passed, and the extent of the increase cannot be

8

determined at this time, and functioning collectors

9

with traffic signals at Honoapiilani Highway will

So that's an issue.

10

most likely attract a larger percentage of these

11

rerouted vehicles, and this is probably

12

talking about Honoapiilani and Shaw. And the third

13

comment was that the width of Front Street between

14

Lahainaluna Road and south to Honoapiilani

15

Highway is relatively narrow.

16

vehicles currently operate along the roadway,

17

typically without incident, at least it hasn't been

18

reported to us.

19

•

10

VICE-CHAIR MOLINA:

you're

However, large

So that's basically our comments.

Would it be possible for the

20

Department to, I guess, implement a pilot project or

21

a trial period for this proposed legislation?

22

Being -

23

know, the concerns that I'm hearing from you, it may

24

be that while we're trying to solve a problem in one

25

area, we may potentially be creating a problem in

and, again, I bring that up because, you
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another.

2

trial project or temporary pilot project in this?

3

Was that something that the Department is

4

considering or has considered?

5

•

•

11

MR. ARAKAWA:

So would it be possible to do some type of

The Code allows the Director to

6

administratively install traffic control devices for

7

an eight-week period on a temporary basis.

8

Generally the chapter that that provision is located

9

in pertains to things like stop signs and traffic

10

signals.

11

actually extends to restricting commercial vehicles

12

for that temporary period.

13

Counsel can comment on that.

And I'm not certain if this authority

14

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

15

MS. YOUNG:

Maybe Corporation

Corporation Counsel.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Pursuant to

16

10.28.130 of the Maui County Code, the Public Works

17

and Environmental Management Director may authorize

18

any approved traffic control device to be placed on

19

any highway under the jurisdiction of the County,

20

provided that it's limited to eight weeks or less,

21

and that would be where Council's approval would not

22

be required.

23

control device to be more along the lines of stop

24

signs or even, perhaps, doing a one way -- in one

25

way/out type of measure.

But we look at the term traffic

We would note that the
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provisions under Chapter 10.28 are more along

2

the lines of signs, warning lights, pedestrian

3

control signals, and the like, and so we believe

4

that -- that prohibiting certain types of vehicles

5

altogether from a portion or an entire roadway would

6

be outside of that authority that Council granted in

7

10.28.130 of the Maui County Code.

8

VICE-CHAIR MOLINA:

9

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

10

•

Okay, thank you.

Thank you, Chairman.

Thank you, Mr. Molina.

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Member Mateo.

Chairman, thank you very much.

I

11

guess the question would be to you, Mr. Chairman,

12

maybe, and as well as the Department in trying to

13

find out whether any of the large tour companies or

14

any of the delivery companies using these larger

15

vehicles had, in fact, provided comment to the Chair

16

or to the Department in terms of the amendment being

17

recommended?

18

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Other than one phone call that I

19

received in regards to a business that does business

20

at 505 Front Street, I think there's a business

21

establishment there, no other calls other than that.

22
23

•

12

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Okay, Mr. Arakawa, any comments

from any of these operators?

24

MR. ARAKAWA:

I did not receive any such calls.

25

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Thank you.

And Mr. Chair, would
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1

the Committee or does the Committee -- did the

2

Committee have an opportunity of actually contacting

3

some of these operators?

4

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

5

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

6

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

7

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Yes, we did.
For comment?

Yes, we did.
And even with that contact, there

8

was no follow up from them expressing comments on

9

the proposed ordinance?

10

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

11

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

12

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Yes.
Thank you.

Members, we do have members of the

13

Police Department as resource person also, but

14

before I introduce them, Member Johnson, you have

15

any questions?

16

•

13

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

No, not of Milton, just of the

17

Police Department and with regard to the question

18

that Councilmember Mateo asked, also, I received one

19

call and it was from a business at the wharf cinema,

20

and because they have large vehicles that service

21

their area, they wanted to make sure that traffic

22

would still be allowed to go down Shaw, and I

23

assured them that it would.

24

had deliveries in that area, because I believe

25

there's one hotel that also may be involved right on

And also that if people
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Front Street there, and I had explained that the

2

delivery vehicles would still be able to do their

3

deliveries and that this would not impact them.

4

Thank you.

Yes, Members, for your

information, on 10.68.010, in regards to heavy

6

vehicles utilizing -- dropping off merchandise and

7

supplies to that area are allowed to do that.

8

they are not restricted totally from doing their

9

business in the morning or in the afternoon, so the

11

12

So

ordinance also provides for that.
Member Molina.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA:

Thank you, Chairman.

If I recall from

13

our last meeting, I believe your Staff sent out

14

letters of inquiry to organizations such as the West

15

Maui Taxpayers Association, Lahaina Town Action

16

Committee, have they responded with comments on this

17

proposal?

18

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

19

VICE-CHAIR MOLINA:

20
21
22

23
24

•

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

5

10

•

14

25

Staff?
I know that we did get a response from

Sacred Heart's school.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Yeah/ we got response from Sacred

Heart's, as well as the Traffic Safety Committee.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA:

Any responses from Kamehameha I I I

school as well?
CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Kam School, no.
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VICE-CHAIR MOLINA:

No.

2

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

None.

3

VICE-CHAIR MOLINA:

I find that very

disappointing.

5

organizations that I mentioned earlier who have come

6

and testified before us to say they represent the

7

views of many citizens in West Maui have not

8

responded to our inquiries with regards to this

9

legislation.

11
12

•

Okay, none.

4

10

•

15

13

I would think these -- well, the

So it's -- concerns me, Mr. Chairman.

Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Okay, Members, any more questions?

Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

I might just clarify that because

14

there has just recently been a personnel change at

15

Lahaina Town Action Committee, the only call that I

16

got was from one of their

17

an executive board member or one of their officers,

18

and I don't believe, because of the area that it's

19

being restricted in, because they don't have

20

commercial businesses that are represented in that

21

area, I don't think there was as much of a concern.

22

The West Maui Taxpayers Association, as I stated

23

previously, they did have a representative in

24

attendance at the Mayor's West Maui Advisory

25

Committee meeting, and they did not seem to voice

- I believe she's either
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1

any objections, although I have no knowledge of

2

whether this was taken back as an issue to be

3

discussed by their board.

4

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

•

Thank you, Member Johnson.

Member Mateo.

5

•

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

6

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

7

Corp. Counsel.

8

passes, how is enforcement going to be implemented?

9

Because this also comes with exemptions.

10

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

11

MS. YOUNG:

Chairman, thank you.

Question for

In the event this -- the amendment

Corporation Counsel.

It's my understanding that the police

12

generally enforce Section 10.68.110 of the Maui

13

County Code.

14

of the Code, it allows for the Maui district

15

engineer or the Department of Transportation or

16

the -- I guess the engineer of the Department of

17

Transportation of the State to special -

18

special permit so, you know, I'm not sure how that

19

operates, but that's basically who does what in the

20

process and -- the Public Works Director's informed

21

me that there's a term county engineer, but that

22

term isn't defined, so it's probably going to be the

23

Director of Public Works who is the one who permits

24

this activity.

25

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

And if you look at Section 10.68.010

to issue a

So the permitting process, then,
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for the Department, how would you recognize the

2

vehicles that have applied for an exemption versus

3

those who are just utilizing the roadway to get to

4

wherever they need to go?

5

people that live along this roadway, how are they

6

going to know that this is an authorized vehicle,

7

you know, or those that are not authorized to use

8

the road?

9

•

MR. ARAKAWA:

So in other words, these

Councilmember Mateo, that's a good

10

question, and from our standpoint we pretty much

11

have to depend on complaints that come into the

12

Department to enforce it.

13

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Okay, so the resident's recourse

14

would be to call the Department and file a

15

complaint.

16

•

17

MR. ARAKAWA:

To call us and then we would go out and

17

send someone to monitor that, and if need be, then,

18

you know, we'll take the appropriate course of

19

action.

20

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

21

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

22

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay, thank you.

Thank you, Chair.

Member Johnson.
The one question I had, too, and

23

perhaps this would be to Corp. Counsel, or possibly

24

to the Police Department, because there's always the

25

temptation, you know, to use this roadway as a
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shortcut, what would the fine be or what is the

2

penalty for failure to obey this ordinance?

3

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

4

MS. YOUNG:

Section 10.68.110 of the Code provides in

Subsection C that the -- that a person who violates

6

that section would be subject to a fine of not less

7

than $100, not more than $500.

9

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay, so if, for example,

somebody did take down a, let's say a -- or even

10

take a photograph, take down either the number or a

11

photograph and it was corroborated that that person

12

was in violation, what would the next step be for

13

them to actually, I guess, incur a fine?

14

they ever get to the fine station?

15

something that's better addressed by the Police

16

Department?

17

police.

18

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

19

How would

Or would that be

Okay, thank you, I'll save that for the

Thank you, Member Johnson.

Any more questions for Corporation Counsel as

20

well as Public Works?

21

Members.

If not, thank you very much,

At this time I'd like to calIon the Police

22

•

Corporation Counsel.

5

8

•

18

23

Department, Captain Hirata, as well as assistant --

24

oh,

25

just Captain Hirata.

MR. HIRATA:

Thank you.

Good morning, Mr. Chairman and Members.
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1

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

2

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

3

Yes, thank you very much for

With regard to what the procedure or the

5

process would be for someone to actually be fined

6

underneath this particular ordinance, how would you

7

proceed?

8

somebody is in the area and it's determined that

9

they're breaking the law?

10

•

Member Johnson.

being here, Captain Hirata.

4

•

Good morning.

MR. HIRATA:

Let's say a complaint comes in and

It can be handled several situations.

11

Number one, if it's on view, the officer can issue

12

the citation after determining that the vehicle is

13

not rendering service to that particular area.

14

People who would be rendering service would be like

15

your UPS vehicles dropping off -- especially this

16

time of the year, presents and what not, and how can

17

we determine if the person is lawfully there, well,

18

most commercial vehicles have what's called a bill

19

of lading or delivery slips, and we can check for

20

that to determine whether or not they are lawfully

21

on that portion of Front Street.

22

The other method is like how we handle any

23

other traffic violation, is if somebody wanted to

24

make a complaint, they can call the police.

25

send an officer.

We'll

We'll document the complaint.
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1

Contact the company.

2

of action, whether it be just to warn or reprimand

3

or in some cases forward to a prosecutor's office

4

for action.

5

have license plates.

6

vehicles also have the name of the company that's on

7

the side of the door, which is required under CDL

8

rules, and they'll be able to identify them.

9

public citizens can also -- looking at the company,

All of these vehicles, they're going to
They're also -- commercial

And

10

look them up in the phonebook, give them a call,

11

say, hey, you know, you're violating this particular

12

statute, to remind them.

13

would normally enforce this.

14

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

That's -- that's how we

Okay, thank you.

With regard to

15

the safety issue, which is, I think, the greatest

16

concern for the community, as Milton Arakawa had

17

stated, to his knowledge, there has been no

18

incidents, but I know that you are regularly

19

traversing that area.

20

potential for incidents or have there been actual

21

incidents which we may be unaware of?

22

•

We could take a couple courses

MR. HIRATA:

Do you believe that there's a

I don't have any documentation.

However,

23

from parking on the side of the road and watching

24

the traffic, there's obviously a bad mix, being that

25

there's no sidewalks on Front Street.
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1

a bicyclist or a pedestrian walking on the side of

2

the road, a vehicle has to stop in case there's

3

oncoming traffic because they can't get by with just

4

a bicyclist or a pedestrian on the side of the road.

5

So that's how narrow the street is and that's how

6

potentially bad it can be.

7

So it's not like there's no other recourse

8

for these vehicles to get into Lahaina, you know,

9

they can make the left down Shaw.

The only thing I

10

would recommend is right now there's construction

11

going on on Shaw Street, which they're digging up

12

Shaw Street, so it's closed, so you might want to

13

put an exemption inside there to be able to use that

14

portion of Front Street in the event that there's no

15

other way or there's construction going on.

16

normal circumstances, it doesn't -- it appears that

17

there is a bad mix of traffic, and due to the

18

conditions that are present on Front Street.

19

•

21

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Thank you very much.

But in

And I know

20

that that areal too, by Shaw, I have no idea, I

21

guess we could ask Mr. Arakawa how much longer that

22

will be taking.

23

too, Mr. Chair, that if, let's say, there was an

24

emergency and maybe there was a closure on the

25

roadway, that these kinds of circumstances would not

And it would be my understanding,
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1

result in any kind of fine to anybody going on that.

2

The other thing Mr. -- Captain Hirata would be the

3

issue of disabled people, because I know of at least

4

two people, one of them has passed away since, but

5

they used the little motorized wheelchairs, is that

6

also potential hazard for that area for those

7

individuals?

8

don't like to go to that part of Front Street simply

9

because it's more of a residential area.

I don't

see these conflicts, but do you have any thoughts on

11

the threats to those disabled individuals?
MR. HIRATA:

Those people using those mobility devices

13

would be at the same risk as those who are on

14

bicycles, pedestrians, and moms pushing strollers as

15

well, so equally, yes.

16

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

17

Mr. Chair.

18
19

•

Because I just -- you know, because I

10

12

•

22

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Okay, thank you very much,

Thank you, Member Johnson.

Member Mateo.

20

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Thank you, Chairman.

Captain, good

21

morning.

22

does the Department -- or would you have any

23

recommendations as to how to deal with these

24

vehicles that will traverse this particular area?

25

Because I don't -- I don't think you have the

Because this process entitles exemptions,
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1

manpower to station somebody in close proximity to

2

monitor the vehicles that could be using this

3

roadway.

4

•

MR. HIRATA:

Well, you know, most times most vehicles

5

that have an exemption or who are rendering service

6

to this particular area would be rather obvious.

7

There's going to be certain cases where it's going

8

to be prima facially -- you know, on its face,

9

vehicles that are obviously not rendering service.

10

You know, a pump out truck may be rendering service,

11

but a Roberts bus may not, probably not, because I

12

don't think they're picking up anybody in that

13

particular area, so on its face it's going to be

14

often.

15

You know, we may not catch every violation,

16

but, you know, it's going to be obvious which ones

17

are just trying to bypass.

18

making a delivery to the Hyatt, you know, obviously

19

aren't going to be using that street to deliver

20

anything, and they will have a bill of lading and

21

they will have a manifest to show where they're

22

delivering and what they're delivering.

23

•

23

You know those who are

So -- I don't think a lot of people know it,

24

but commercial vehicles can be stopped at any time

25

by the police for any reason, just to inspect their
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1

medical cards, PUC cards, et cetera, so it will be

2

pretty obvious what they're doing on Front Street.

3

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

4

MR. HIRATA:

5

6

I think just merely having a statute will

discourage most of them from using that.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

And do you think that a statute

that includes exemptions, somehow exemptions could

8

be perceived as a loop -

9

get around this particular ordinance?
MR. HIRATA:

a loophole in trying to

I really don't think so.

I think most

11

companies will be responsible once they're aware of

12

this.

13

highway that would advise people that can -- the use

14

of Front Street by commercial vehicles is prohibited

15

from Puamana to Shaw Street.

16
17

It will also require a sign on the State

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

19

Department?

21

Thank you.

Thank you, Captain.

Thank you, Chair.

18

20

•

Thank you.

7

10

•

24

VICE-CHAIR MOLINA:

Any more questions for Police
Member Molina.
Thank you, Mr. Chair.

Good morning, Captain Hirata.

You've heard

22

the comments from the Department with regards to the

23

proposed legislation and the impact it could have on

24

other collector roads within the area.

25

any suggestions or recommendations, should we enact
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1

this legislation and then we start to receive

2

complaints from other roads, any alternatives we can

3

consider?

4

•

MR. HIRATA:

I believe most commercial vehicles are

5

probably using Shaw Street right now anyway, and I

6

haven't heard any complaints from either the

7

businesses or the trucking companies or the

8

residents with regards to their use of Shaw Street.

9

And it makes more sense for Shaw Street, too,

10

because it is wider, there are turn lanes, the

11

intersection of Front and Shaw Street has several

12

lanes and it's easier to make the turn there and

13

it's probably more dangerous for a large bus to make

14

a right turn from Front Street on to Honoapiilani

15

Highway because they will actually, as Mr. Arakawa

16

noted, intrude into the oncoming left turn lane into

17

Front Street on Honoapiilani Highway.

18

•

25

So that -- that is pretty much our

19

observations, and like I said, I think

20

most of the big companies, and the bus companies as

21

well, they're using Shaw Street right now, except

22

during this period of construction, of course, but

23

you may want to look at an exemption for those

24

particular times of emergency or construction.

25

VICE-CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay, thank you.

Thank you, Chairman.
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1
2

3

26

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Members, any more questions for the

Police Department?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Member Johnson.
Captain Hirata, because this is

4

encompassed in an ordinance that really addresses

5

more than just this one area with regard to the

6

exemptions, do you think it would be helpful for the

7

Committee to take a look at language being inserted,

8

you know, obviously not connected right to this

9

particular piece of legislation, but just take a

10

look at what exemptions we could insert in that

11

ordinance which would be applicable, then, to any of

12

the locations where we restrict access?

13

MR. HIRATA:

Well, you know, there's a hierarchy of

14

traffic control devices and the highest of the

15

hierarchy is the police officers.

16

make a left turn over here and only to make a left

17

turn, you need to make a left turn irregardless of

18

what any sign says.

19

the flow on a one-way street if we had to.

20

police officer directs you to do so, that's what you

21

must do.

22

directing traffic down Front Street away from an

23

accident site, for example, then people will have to

24

do that, and, you know, the -- they don't have to

25

worry about being cited because we're telling them

If we tell you to

So we could actually reverse

Then the signs come into effect.
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1
2

to do that.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

So if I understand you correctly,

3

that flexibility already exists within the current

4

legislation?

5

MR. HIRATA:

6

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

7

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Correct.
Okay, thank you.

Thank you, Member Johnson.

8

Members, any more questions for the Captain?

9

not, thank you very much, Captain Hirata.

10

MR. HIRATA:

11

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

If

Thank you.
Any more questions for Public Works

12

Director?

13

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Member Johnson.
The only question I had,

14

Mr. Chair, was just about when the Front Street

15

project would be completed.

16

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

17

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

18

Stand corrected.

19

•

27

MR. ARAKAWA:

Shaw Street.
Or Shaw.

I'm sorry.

Shaw.

Councilmember Johnson, I don't have that

20

information with me off the top of my head.

21

believe that's part of our project within our

22

Wastewater Reclamation Division.

23

for the Committee's information, though, that we

24

have recently completed the Lahaina Town Drainage

25

Master Plan and there are drainage improvements that

I do want to note
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1

are also proposed on Shaw Street as weIll so that

2

should be coming up in future years

3

not currently funded by the Council. I just want to

4

let the Committee know of that.

5

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Members

6

Member Johnson.

any more questions for Public Works

Director?

8

Chair would like to call a one-minute recess.

10

•

I

l

although it's

7

9

•

Thank you

l

Members, if there's no objection, the

COUNCIL MEMBERS:
CHAIR PONTANILLA:

No objections.
No objections?

11

(Gavel) .

12

RECESS:

9:40 a.m.

13

RECONVENE:

9:41 a.m.

14

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

(Gavel).

Thank you.

Recess.

Thank you very much,

15

Members, for that recess.

16

no objections, the Chair would like to provide his

17

recommendation to Public Works item PW-121 which is

18

"A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 10.68.110

19

MAUl COUNTY CODE, PERTAINING TO HEAVY VEHICLES AND

20

VEHICLE LOAD."

21

vehicles from using Front Street between its

22

intersection with

23

Street in Lahaina.

24

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

25

VICE-CHAIR MOLINA:

At this time, if there's

And this is to restrict commercial

H-Pi~ilani

at Puamana and Shaw

No objections.
No objection.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

2

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Chair would like to recommend that --

the approval of the proposed bill and the filing of

4

the communication.

5

VICE-CHAIR MOLINA:

6

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

7

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

9

•

Recommendation.

3

8

•

29

So move.
Second.

Been moved by Member Molina, seconded

by Member Mateo.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA:

10

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

11

VICE-CHAIR MOLINA:

All in favor, say "aye."

Chairman, discussion.
Oh, discussion.

Member Molina.

Mr. Chairman, I will support your

12

recommendation, but it is with reservations.

I

13

would have preferred to take a wait-and-see approach

14

with this.

15

the Department as to if we pass this legislation,

16

there is that potential that may create a problem

17

for other residents.

18

concerns expressed by the residents on Front Street

19

and Puamana, I think in an interim measure maybe

20

that I inquired about, a trial, you know, process to

21

see if we enact this legislation, what kind of

22

affects it would have, I would have liked to have

23

seen that, but being that we heard earlier that it

24

may not be possible with the way the ordinance

25

currently reads.

Mostly due to the concerns expressed by

While I do sympathize with the
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1

wait-and-see approach for me on this/ Mr. Chairman/

3

so even with the Traffic Safety Council/ they

4

express somewhat of the same concerns the Public

5

Works Department expressed and maybe a future study

6

to/ I guess/ better assess the ramifications this

7

legislation could have/ might/ for me/ take a more

8

definitive stance on this proposal/ but I'll support

9

the recommendations/ but with those comments/ Mr.

11

12
13

Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Thank you.
Thank you very much/ Member Molina.

Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Chairman/ thank you very much.

I

14

share Member Molina's sentiments.

15

a -- I don't think this bill is really the solution.

16

When the problem is potentially to be shared with

17

other streets in the area/ that is not the solution.

18

I would have preferred an interim measure to see

19

that something could be implemented, to see whether

20

or not this is the right action or not, but I will

21

support the Chair's recommendation and I will

22

support the amendment/ but, Chairman, with

23

reservations at this particular point.

24

•

So it is with reservations and more of a

2

10

•

30

25

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

I don't think

Thank you very much, Member Mateo.

Member Johnson.
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1

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Even though I won't be voting on

2

this, I really appreciate the Committee taking the

3

time to take up this issue.

4

community-driven with the support of the Police

5

Department, I think the primary purpose is not so

6

much the level of traffic, it's the potential for a

7

death or the potential for harm, and particularly

8

with the families that live in that area.

9

them have small children, and for me also, I know

Because this is

Many of

10

when Aunty Pua Lindsey lived in that area, this was

11

one of the things that she feared every time she

12

would leave her home, going down Front Street, and

13

even though she's no longer with us, I know that

14

this was something that she wholeheartedly supported

15

as our rural communities, and at one time, believe

16

it or not, Lahaina was and that area was rural.

17

•

31

That area was never designed to accommodate

18

the amount of traffic that it currently has.

19

people, you know, move into residential areas

20

you're going to have conflicts.

21

up to County standards as we would ordinarily look

22

at the road widths, the fact that it doesn't have

23

the sidewalks, and even if you put in all those

24

improvements, the people still, living on that

25

section of road, are still being placed at risk,

524-2090

l

The roadway is not
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even with all those other things.
Along Shaw it is, as has been stated by

2

3

Captain Hirata and also by our Public Works

4

Director, it will be, over time, improved.

5

are some children occasionally that do walk along

6

Shaw, but I think that where we strive to improve

7

public transportation and the community moves

8

forward with some of the issues that we're trying to

9

fund and look at alternative solutions to just

10

people getting in their cars or their trucks and

11

moving from point A to B, I really think that this

12

is supportive of where we should be going. So just

13

as in Makawao or in other areas where we have

14

roadways that were built in a much different time, I

15

do appreciate the support of the Members of this

16

Committee and your support, Mr. Chair, for trying to

17

look after the public health and the safety of our

18

citizens, and particularly our little ones and our

19

disabled.

20

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Thank you, Mr. Chair.
Thank you, Member Johnson.

And, Members, the Committee Chair would be

21

•

There

22

working closely with the Department in regards to an

23

overall plan as far as the traffic flow in Lahaina

24

Town.

25

mentioned that, you know, we need to take a look at

I think that's really needed, as you all had
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1

the circulation in Lahaina r especially Lahaina Town

2

in regards to traffic.

3

be working closely with the Public Works Department

4

in regards to that particular issue.

5

SOr Members r any more discussion?

6

the motion r say "aye."

7

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.

8

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

9

VOTE:

AYES:

10

NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:
EXC.:

11

So the Committee Chair would

All in favor of

Motion is carried.
Counci1member Carroll, Mateo, Molina,
and Chair Pontani11a.
None.
None.
None.
Counci1member Hokama.

12

•

MOTION CARRIED.
13

14
15

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Thank you very much r Members.

Before

16

we go into the second item r which will be a lengthy

17

discussion r the Chair would like to call a recess

18

and we'll reconvene at ten o'clock.

19

Recess.

20

RECESS:

21

RECONVENE:

22

•

FIRST READING of bill; and FILING of
communication.

ACTION:

9:48 a.m.
10:03 a.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

(Gavel).

The Public Works and

23

Environmental Management

24

now reconvened.

25

(Gavel) .

[sic] Committee meeting is

Members r we do have our second item on the
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1

agenda, PW 42, that deals with downhill bicycling

2

tours.

3

time the Chair would receive public testimony from

4

the public.

5

minutes of testimony and we'll give you one minute

6

to conclude.

8

ask, if you haven't done already, is to turn your

9

cell phones off or to the silent mode as well as

10

your pagers.
Okay, the first testifier on Public Works

11

12

Item 42 is Paula Holroyde.

13

name and the organization that you represent, we'd

14

appreciate it.

15
16

If you could state your

Thank you.
.BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY . . .

MS. HOLROYDE:

Good morning, Chair Pontanilla and Members

17

of the Committee.

18

I'm testifying today as a member of the Kula

19

community who requested support from the Kula

20

Community Association.

21

•

If the public can provide us with three

The other thing that the Chair would like to

7

•

Before we go into our discussion, at this

My name is Paula Holroyde, and

In 2001, I sent an email urging the Council

22

to look into the bike tours because they are road

23

rage waiting to happen.

24

of bicycle tours and bike companies have increased,

25

the problems have increased.

Since 2001, as the number

The bicycle groups
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have invaded our communities and treated us worse

2

than dirt.

3

obstruct our roads, pollute our roadways and private

4

property, put us in jeopardy, and treat us with

5

arrogance and obscenities.

6

•

The majority of the bicycle groups

A couple of months ago, a small group of us

7

got together to discuss our concerns.

8

presentation is very premature, since we are still

9

in the information gathering process.

This

Some of the

10

problems we have discussed are the bike companies

11

obstruct traffic and jeopardize the safety of the

12

bikers, the residents, and the environment.

13

jeopardize our safety when they assume the duties of

14

traffic officers, and direct us to cross the double

15

yellow line to pass their groups, regardless of

16

oncoming traffic or blind corners.

17

our safety when they disregard the stop sign where

18

Crater Road meets Kekaulike Highway.

19

jeopardize our safety when their equipment, like

20

brake lights, are not working properly_

21

jeopardize our safety and health when our Kula

22

ambulance is taken to tend to or transport a bicycle

23

accident victim.

24

•
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25

They

They jeopardize

They

They

Our County residents' health is in jeopardy
when emergency room physicians are taken up dealing
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with critically injured bicycle accident victims.

2

They jeopardize our homes and safety when our Kula

3

fire truck is out tending to bicycle accident

4

victims.

5

travel at speeds faster than the patron's ability or

6

comfort zone.

7

they travel close to the center line, leaving their

8

patrons no room for error in confrontation with

9

oncoming traffic, including buses.

10

•

They jeopardize their patrons when they

They jeopardize their patrons when

They put their -- they put their patrons in

11

jeopardy when they direct traffic

12

them directing traffic after another patron has

13

crashed.

14

their guides do not have regular drug tests.

15

Maui taxpayers' money is in jeopardy with pending

16

litigation against the bike companies and the

17

County.

18

•
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when they have

They put their patrons in jeopardy when

Maui taxpayer money is being used to provide

19

emergency services to crash victims.

20

environment of Maui's in jeopardy with over 100,000

21

bike patrons traveling from the top of Haleakala to

22

Paia with no relief stations.

23

more information of the affects of the bicycle tours

24

on Maui County, we would like to come back and share

25

our findings and recommendations.

After we've gathered

In the meantime,
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1

the bicycle companies need to realize they are

2

unwelcomed invaders of our communities and work to

3

accommodate us, not vice versa.

4

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Members, any questions for the testifier?

5
6

7

•

Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Thank you, Chair.

8

Thank you very much for coming and giving your

9

testimony this morning, Holroyde -

Ms. Holroyde.

10

You said that you sent in an email in 2001 and that

11

the company

12

since then?

- the tour companies have increased

13

MS. HOLROYDE:

14

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

15
16
17

•

Thank you very much.

Uh-huh.
Do you have any idea how much of

an increase there's been?
MS. HOLROYDE:

We're trying to get that all together for

you.

18

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

19

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

20

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

21

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

22

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Okay, thank you.

Any more questions for the testifier?
Chairman.

Mr. Mateo.
Just so I understood right, your

23

testimony, ma'am, this was the position of the Kula

24

Community Association?

25

MS. HOLROYDE:

I am a private resident who went to the
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1

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

3

MS. HOLROYDE:

4

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

5

MS. HOLROYDE:

6

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

So this is your testimony --

Yes.
-- as an individual?

Yes.
And not that of the Kula Community

Association?

8

MS. HOLROYDE:

9

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

10

Right.

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Thank you.

Thank you.

Thank you, Chairman.

At this time the Chair

11

would like to recognize Committee Member Riki

12

Hokama, who is also the Council Chair, as well as

13

Member Michelle Anderson.

15

Good morning.

The second testifier on the same item is

14

16

•

Kula Community Association and said please help us.

2

7

•
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Elliott Krash.
MS. KRASH:

Good morning, Chair Pontanilla and Members of

17

the Committee.

18

testifying this morning on behalf of the Kula

19

Community Association.

20

position or recommendations for you, but I want to

21

share with you this morning what we are in the

22

process of doing and a few of the suggestions that

23

have come out during our preliminary discussions

24

with residents and other stakeholders.

25

My name's Elliott Krash and I'm

We don't yet have a specific

First of all, I want to thank you for the
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1

open process that you're providing here to hear the

2

many different perspectives on this issue, and the

3

many different issues related to bike tours.

4

issues obviously, as you've already heard, include

5

not only the health and safety issues but also

6

economic benefits, environmental impacts, the

7

traffic law enforcement issues, and impact on

8

driving schedules in the communities where the bike

9

tours pass through.

These

These issues are also multi

10

jurisdictional, which adds another complication.

11

It's not only County roadways but State highways,

12

the National Park, Federal -- the Federal lands,

13

bike tour companies, Upcountry communities,

14

everybody has a piece of this.

15

This situation, as Paula mentioned, was first

16

presented to our board in October by Paula and

17

Camille Lions, who is also here today, and Harriet

18

Holt, and as she mentioned, they shared their

19

concerns that had to do with the increasing numbers

20

of the groups, the increasing numbers of the

21

unguided tour riders, the serious accidents, the

22

near misses, the obstruction of traffic, the need

23

for increased enforcement, et cetera, the questions

24

regarding the bike company's requirements for their

25

staff and the protocols for rider's safety.
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Because those concerns that they brought to us

2

address mainly health and safety issues, this was

3

assigned to our Health and Safety Committee, and

4

we've had several meetings together.

5

•

We've reviewed anecdotal information and

6

we've spoken informally with National Park staff,

7

some tour company staff, other residents in the area

8

and also cyclists, and as next steps, as Paula also

9

mentioned, what we want to do is educate ourselves

10

more. We want to analyze and collect data that we

11

can get on accidents.

12

County and State laws.

13

additional stakeholders and our constituents, and

14

then we want to listen to them, and, from what

15

they're telling to us, develop the recommendations

16

and identify the main issues that are presented by

17

our constituents.

18

•
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We want to look at applicable
We want to interview

And although our work has just begun, let me

19

share with you a few of the preliminary suggestions.

20

Let me emphasize these are preliminary.

21

items that people told us that I can't attend this

22

morning, but if I were there, here's what I would

23

want to suggest.

24

begun as soon as possible.

25

laws, education of cyclists and motorists about the

Things they felt could maybe be
Enforcement of existing
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1

rights and the responsibilities of each party,

2

limitations on numbers of the daily or hourly trips

3

and the intervals of the trips, construction of

4

additional pUll-out areas for the cyclists at

5

critical locations, specific guidelines for the

6

tours when they have to pullover and allow the

7

traffic to pass, required rest stops before and/or

8

during the tours, installation of Port-a-Potties at

9

the staging area up at the 6,500-foot level, and

10

additional hearings, workshops, as you're providing

11

here now for everyone to be heard on this, because

12

it is such a complex, multi faceted, and multi

13

jurisdictional issue.

14
15
16

Again, thank you for providing this
opportunity for all of us to speak.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Members, any questions for the testifier?

17

18

I do have one.

19

this particular issue as far as downhill bicycling

20

tours, is there a possibility of maybe getting

21

together along with your community, with the bike

22

tour communitYi in other words, have both sides.

23
24

•

Thank you, Elliott.

25

MS. KRASH:

While the Committee works -- work on

Yes, we've discussed that, and that is

something that -CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Can be considered.
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MS. KRASH:

2

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

3

MS. KRASH:

4

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

5

VICE-CHAIR MOLINA:

6

Thank you.

- - to the dialogue.
Thank you.

Member Molina.

Thank you, Chairman.

Good morning, Ms. Krash.
MS. KRASH:

8

VICE-CHAIR MOLINA:

Good morning.
Do you recall, I think it was several

years ago, there was a bicycle task force from a

10

prior Administration?

11

do you recall anyone from the Kula Association that

12

was involved with this?

13

14

15

MS. KRASH:

Were you a party to that, or

I'd have to ask the others.

of that.

I wasn't a part

I'm not sure.

VICE-CHAIR MOLINA:

Thank you.

I guess I'll make some

16

other inquiries, but I do recall, I think it was a

17

Mayor's Bicycle Task Force or ad hoc Committee that

18

was formed to address some of the issues brought up.

19
20

•

- - we would see as helpful --

7

9

•

42

MS. KRASH:

I'll make a note to check with some of our

members that are bikers and others.

21

VICE-CHAIR MOLINA:

22

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Thank you.

Thank you, Chairman.

Any more questions for the testifier?

23

Again, thank you very much for being here this

24

morning. Next testifier is Phillip Swatek.

25

MR. SWATEK:

Yes, good morning, and thank you for the
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opportunity to testify.

2

and I am from the Makawao Main Street Association.

3

I'm Chairman of that organization.

4

•

•
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My name is Phillip Swatek,

It is the position of our organization that

5

the bike tours be regulated.

That has been our

6

position for years now.

7

not banned.

8

the community who'd like to see them banned, that is

9

not our position.

Notice I've said regulated,

Although there are probably people in

We meet on a regular basis,

10

probably a couple of times a year, and I would say

11

meeting after meeting, year after year, there's

12

probably no single issue that arouses people more

13

than the bicycle tours.

14

frustration now is probably the highest I've ever --

15

I've ever seen.

I say the level of

16

I'm also the past president of the Olinda

17

Community Association, and I know that since the

18

late 1980s that this has been something that's

19

concerned our community very much.

20

Makawao the specific concerns have very much to do

21

with the town itself and the single intersection

22

that is Makawao.

23

for us has always been Hanamu Road, which is

24

a very old-fashioned country road designed to

25

service the Ranch.

I know that in

In Olinda, I think the flash point

It's narrow.

It's full of dips.
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There's a lot of sight obstruction there, and it's

2

now a link between the Upper Kula Highway and Olinda

3

Road, and an area that's increasingly used is King K

4

High School has come on line, now there are a lot of

5

people who commute from Haiku and Makawao via that

6

road to get to King K.

7

exacerbation of the existing problem because of

8

increased traffic.
Personally I've seen up to seven bicycle

9

•

10

tours on Hanamu Road at one time.

11

close to a hundred people, and seven vans milling

12

around, taking off clothes -- that is to say their

13

rain suits -

14

hazard.

15

see the road specifically to understand some of

16

these problems, but there are dips in places where

17

there's -- it's almost impossible to see

18

over the hill, so what people have to do is you have

19

to stop and very cautiously go around the people who

20

are milling in the road and hope that nobody's

21

coming in the opposite direction.

22

•

And so we've seen sort of an

That would be

and generally creating an enormous

It's very hard, especially -- you'd have to

I'd say that, anecdotally, my own experience

23

with the bike tours has been an unhappy one.

24

bike tours became an important part of my life when

25

my wife was driving our children up to the top of
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Haleakala Crater, this is back in 1988, a van had

2

broken loose and emerged suddenly out of the fog in

3

her lane.

4

left my wife injured.

5

settled out of court, but to this day my wife is

6

injured in her hip and has some difficulty in moving

7

completely.

8

9

•
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It hit her head on, totaled the car, and
We, of course, sued.

Again, I thank you for your attention.

I

sincerely believe that we can come to some

10

compromise.

11

tours be banned.

12

together, as you suggested, in a way that can

13

address all of our concerns.

14

It was

It's not my position that the bike
I would just hope that we can come

Finally, in my last few seconds, I would just

15

say that a third -- another concern I have is with

16

the degradation of the national park experience.

17

know -- I'm a former employee of the National Park

18

Service and love the crater very much.

19

shocked when I went -- took my kids up the other day

20

at sunrise to see what had happened

21

going on at the top there in the parking lot,

22

but I'm sure that the park service is looking at

23

that now, and I hope that they will come up with

24

some solutions.

25

I was

or what was

Again, thank you all very much for this

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

I

PW 11/28/05

•

1
2
3

4

46

opportunity.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:

VICE-CHAIR MOLINA:

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Good morning, Mr. Swatek.

6

MR. SWATEK:

7

VICE-CHAIR MOLINA:

Good morning.
Thank you for your comments.

You

8

mentioned regulation of the industry.

9

us any specific areas of the industry where you

10
11

•

Member Molina, followed by

Member Anderson.

5

•

Thank you.

Can you give

would see the need for regulation?
MR. SWATEK:

Well, I've thought about this, of course,

12

and I think the first step would be to examine

13

existing statutes and see how those can best be

14

enforced.

15

And I know the difficulty with enforcement really

16

would be it's very difficult for the police force to

17

be everywhere they have to be.

18

occur suddenly or they -- it's not like an accident

19

scene.

20

around in the middle of Hanamu Road, that's bad.

21

I don't know what statute would apply.

22

if members of the Olinda community were to do that,

23

we'd

24

trouble with the law.

25

begin, is just looking at what's on the books.

I don't know what those statutes are.

These incidents

I mean, if you have dozens of people milling

I know that

- on a regular basis, we'd probably be in
So that's the place where I'd
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VICE-CHAIR MOLINA:

2

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

3

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

•

Thank you.
Thank you.

Member Anderson.

Thank you, Chair.

Excuse me.

4

You mentioned what's going on up at the parking lot

5

at the crater.

6

is going on?

7

•
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MR. SWATEK:

Could you be more specific on what

Well, like I say, I hadn't been up in a

8

couple of years, but when I went up to do sunrise,

9

taking my teenage daughter and her friends, to tell

10

you the truth, I lost count of the number of vans,

11

but there were many, and many patrons milling about.

12

The vans were all running.

13

exhaust smoke.

14

mean, it wasn't untoward or especially unpleasant.

15

I think the problem really became when we all -- it

16

came time to leave the parking lot and then there

17

was this string that stretched for miles, and I've

18

done measurements

19

problems that the tour groups have is they

20

bikes get a lot of separation, and I've observed

21

that sometimes the -- from one end to the other,

22

this train of bikes and a van will be 300 yards.

23

when you get a few groups together, sometimes you're

24

talking about an area that's maybe, you know, close

25

to half a mile where there's a congestion or an

The lot was filled with

People were, you know, talking.

sometimes I think one of the

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808)

I

524-2090

the

So

PW 11/28/05

•

1
2

3

4
5

6

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Would you have an estimate of

how many vans are there?
MR. SWATEK:

Like I say, this one day, I mean, at least

ten, and that might be a modest estimate.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Okay, and then the other thing

you -- you didn't really hit on this, but as a

8

member of the Makawao Main Street Association.MR. SWATEK:

Yes.

10

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

11

for Makawao Town?

12

MR. SWATEK:

-- Do you see any economic value

I know there's one restaurant that profits

13

by the bicycle tours.

14

every morning, so I think in that sense the one

15

restaurant is being served.

16

don't regularly schedule any sort of shopping

17

opportunities.

18

wish sometimes we could stop and harvest some of

19

these people and get them to shop in Makawao, and

20

that would be a stimulus.

21

•

impediment on the road.

7

9

•
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They stop there for breakfast

On the other hand, they

They just go through our town.

We

But as it is, they're sort of, I think, at

22

this point kind of a negative impact because

23

residents are, frankly, staying away from town, and

24

this is a concern that's been expressed to us by

25

residents and shop owners, that the bike tours,
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especially in the morning, create an environment

2

that's unpleasant and, of course, we've got

3

incredible growth Upcountry now, too, but, again,

4

the bicycles just sort of exacerbate that situation.

5
6

7

•

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

And then make it difficult for

people to get in and out of parking.
MR. SWATEK:

Yeah, I mean, I've been told that -- by

8

people in Makawao that they avoid Makawao because of

9

the bikes.

I myself don't.

I still go to Makawao,

10

but that's what I've been told by people in our

11

organization.

12

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

13

excuse me -

14

through Makawao?

15

MR. SWATEK:

No.

And so do you have a time --

a time frame when they're passing

I do it periodically.

I have a farm.

I travel -- I go to Kula to deliver my

16

I actually

17

flowers,

18

out and about frequently.

19

I'll go into Makawao to shop, so I'm -- I'm

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

NO

I

nO

I

no, I mean when the bike

20

tours are passing through/ do you know the time

21

frame?

22
23

•
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MR. SWATEK:

Usually starting around 8:30 in the morning

and on through the day.

24

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

25

MR. SWATEK:

On through the day?

Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

2

MR. SWATEK:

3

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

4

It's no longer just a morning

thing?
MR. SWATEK:

6

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

7

MR. SWATEK:

8

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

No.

It's all day long.
Okay.

Thank you very much.

You're welcome.
Thank you, Member Anderson.

questions for the testifier?

10

MR. SWATEK:

11

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

12

MR. CAPRIOTTI:

Any more

Thank you.

Thank you.
The next testifier is Peter Capriotti.

Aloha.

My name is Peter Capriotti.

I'm

13

a former president of Haiku Community Association,

14

been involved in Makawao Community Association, Main

15

Street, former driver, used to drive every day for

16

Geods, taking a crew up to the crater and back.

17

know the road very well.

18

times on every time of vehicle imaginable.

19

wouldn't do it on a bicycle, but motorcycle, horse,

20

so forth, so on.

21

allowing us to come here.

22

overdue.

23

•

The whole day?

Yes, the whole day.

5

9

•
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I

I've driven on it many
I

I want to thank you very much for
This meeting is long

This -- the tours should have been -- this

24

should have been brought to a head a long time ago.

25

There are many reasons and theories as to why it
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hasn't.

2

place, isn't it?

3

Upcountry.

4

is special, it's beautiful.

5

years and I appreciate the beauty.

6

anyone really believe -- and I'd like to take a

7

little poll here.

8

bicycles are safe?

9

anybody believe it's dangerous?

10

•

•
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All I can say is that Maui's a beautiful

Okay.

Everybody's enchanted by

You go Upcountry, the mountain
I've been there for 30
This

does

Does anyone believe that these
Can I see a show of hands?

Does

You know, I believe that one of the

11

problems here is that most people don't really know

12

what's going on Upcountry.

13

know Mike lives up there and Charmaine, but they all

14

live on the other side.

15

Makawao, in Haiku, and it used to be a problem, you

16

know, taking my kids to school in Makawao and every

17

day having to deal with not getting through the

18

intersection at Makawao.

19

extensively and, you know, we looked at this doing

20

other projects, how important this intersection is.

21

We certainly don't want a stop sign there like Paia

22

and we don't want it to get to that point.

23

worked out so far, but now, with so many tours, and

24

they are constant, I am surprised/ I think anybody

25

that goes there would be surprised, how many there

The Council -- and I

I live on the other side of

We studied this
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are now, and that's only because they're

2

unregulated.
The guy really started this, Cruiser Bob

3
4

said, gee, this is a great deal, you know, we've

5

been treated nicely here.

6

Eventually the Council, the Mayor is going to do

7

something and regulate this industry and we're going

8

to have to take our operation off the road.

9

let's get organized and try to find another way to

So

10

get off the public roads.

11

and everyone said, gee, we got a free ride here.

12

Okay, so now we've got a situation where I don't

13

think anybody understands how really angry that

14

this -- the tour bike companies have generated in

15

the community, a great deal of animosity, and that

16

loses that aloha.

Well, he sold his company

Okay, Makawao is no longer a horse, a paniolo

17

18

town.

19

to come to Makawao any more.

20

deal with this type of thing.

21

to sign up because I've got pages here.

22

•

How long can this last?

It's plagued with bicycles, people don't want
They don't want to
You know, I'm going

What I want to say is that the bike tours are

23

not made -- this is an extreme sport.

The grade is

24

too high.

25

grade is too high. The bicycles aren't built for it.

Makawao, coming down from Olinda, the
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You would need an extreme sport, a well-trained

2

athlete and a high-tech bike to be able to navigate

3

this.

4

times in many different ways, and if you put an

5

older person, a younger person, even an

6

unexperienced person and you put them on those

7

bicycles and send them down that hill, you are

8

inviting disaster.

9

•

I know personally, I've been down many, many

Now, they've had a lot of time to do

10

something.

11

anything.

12

injuries, 24 serious injuries every year.

13

been more than 13 deaths.

14

conscionable not to want to regulate this?

15

I say you have to regulate it.

16

Force Committee and study this, every aspect of it,

17

and let's see if we can force the bike tours to take

18

some of that $10 billion and develop their own roads

19

and get off the County roads.

20

solution.

21

•
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They haven't done

no one's done

We've had over a thousand serious

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

There's

How can the Council be

Let's form a Task

That would be a

Thank you very much t Mr. Capriotti.

22

If you could, you know, we can make copies of your

23

testimony, if you have it in writing, so that each

24

of the members can have a copy.

25

MR. CAPRIOTTI:

Well, I'd like to corne back because I
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1

have many things to saYI but I think maybe I'll put

2

it into a form and sent it to the Council

3

want this to be a formal complaint that is paid

4

attention tOI because if not l it will -- it will

5

continue to be an issue here l and we'll make it a

6

political issue

7

and I say don't waitl regulate.

8
9

10
11

•

•
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CHAIR PONTANILLA:

l

I

because I

because it's gone on way too long

Thank you.

So we'll expect that.

Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Thank you l Chairman.

Thank you for coming

I

Mr. Capriotti.

I lived

12

Upcountry many years l and I'm very familiar with the

13

bike tours l and II tOOl had to compete with them

14

when I was taking my son to school.

15

think -- do you know when they started extending it

16

to an all-day event?

17

MR. CAPRIOTTI:

18

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

19

MR. CAPRIOTTI:

When do you

Well -When it started -

The whole industry has grown because it's

20

a profitable industry, and it's profitable because

21

it's not regulated{ and why it's not regulated is

22

unconscionable to me, when there's so much public

23

outcry. When the deaths

24

activity and there's no injuries that will come even

25

close to this type of activity on County roads

- you can take every
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1

believe, and a lawyer told me this, this is only

2

going to stop when the Council members themselves

3

are named in lawsuits.

4

that it hasn't gotten that far.
My cousin, who is a Marine in Kaneohe, came

5

•

•

And I'm frankly surprised

6

over here with his wife.

They went down.

7

wonderful experience.

8

leg.

9

go windsurfing, let's adjust the brakes.

What a

Unfortunately, she broke her

They adjusted the brakes, said, hey, we got to
So they

10

adjusted the brakes so she didn't have enough

11

brakes.

12

she didn't even want to come back to Maui.

13

you've got Jay Leno saying -- talking to an actor

14

that had a bad experience and said you can't

15

believe this, I went to Maui, I went up the mountain

16

and they woke me up, they put me up there.

17

freezing up there.

18

was so many people.

19

the whole experience, but then

She went off the road, broke her foot, and
Now

I was

They put a blanket on me.

There

There was pollution, and I lost

20

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

21

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

22

MR. CAPRIOTTI:

23

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

You've answered the question.

24

MR. CAPRIOTTI:

made a joke of Maui, and that's what we

25

Point of order, Chairman.

Mr. Capriotti.

Anyway, they've -

are, is a joke right now.
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1

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

2

MR. CAPRIOTTI:

3

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

4

•

•

Thanks.
Any more questions for the testifier?

If not, thank you very much.
The next testifier is Brian Kramer.

5

6

Thank you.

MR. KRAMER:

Good morning, Mr. Chair, Members of the

7

Committee.

My name is Brian Kramer, and I've been

8

involved in the downhill bicycle business since my

9

arrival on Maui, 1991.

I am currently the general

10

manager for Maui Mountain Riders.

11

responsibility to set the policy and procedures for

12

the overall operations of downhill bicycle rides, to

13

include safety of our clients, my staff, and the

14

general public.

15

It is my

Visitors come to Maui for numerous reasons.

16

They come to visit the number one island in the

17

world, they come to see our beautiful beaches, drive

18

the road to Hana, hike the various rain forests,

19

enjoy the many ocean activities we have to offer.

20

They eat plate lunches or enjoy an evening of dining

21

at one of our world famous restaurants.

22

at our outdoor markets, purchase fine art, or they

23

just come to relax in some of the finest hotels in

24

the world, and, yes, ladies and gentlemen, they also

25

come to bike down the world's largest dormant
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1

volcano, Haleakala.

2

How many times have I heard a visitor tell me

3

that they came to Maui just so they could do the

4

downhill bike ride on Haleakala?

5

for just one day.

6

and they contribute to the economy of Maui, which

7

affects us all.

8

enjoying this wonderful and special place that we

9

call Maui.

They don't come

They stay for a week on average

Visitors spend millions of dollars

Maui no ka oi.

And what makes Maui the

10

best?

11

we all say we do, some of us have a little better

12

handle on it, and that is showing our aloha.

13

Comments such as ambulance tending to injured

14

bicyclists when residents might need the services

15

has no place on Maui or anywhere else for that

16

matter.

17

•
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All of what I just mentioned, plus something

I would like to thank Mr. Mushcietti for

18

bringing his concerns to the Committee.

19

assure Mr. Mushcietti and the Committee that we at

20

Mountain Riders share his concerns and work very

21

hard to ensure our drivers and cruise leaders comply

22

with County, State and Federal laws and guidelines.

23

We have made huge progress over the past few years

24

with regard to client safety and public opinion.

25

far the majority of progress made regarding the
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1

conduct and operations of bike tours has resulted

2

from actions taken by the bike tour operators

3

and Haleakala National Park.

4

Our annual permit and special conditions of

5

authorizations outlines rules and regulations with

6

regard to numbers of riders in each group, spacing

7

requirements for riders, minimum distance between

8

groups, mandatory pUll-outs where traffic is allowed

9

to pass, along with training requirements for

10

leaders and drivers, safety requirements, protection

11

of our natural resources, and emergency medical

12

procedures.

13

regulations and guidelines results in suspension of

14

operations and/or termination of our permit on

15

Haleakala.

Failure to comply with these

For example, the National Park provides five

16

•
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17

pUll-outs for the bike riders to use in the first

18

ten miles of the park.

19

Kalahaku, Leilei Iwi, Halema'u, mile marker 13, and

20

headquarters.

21

turnouts to allow traffic to pass results in a

22

citation and a minimum fine.

23

problem

24

MS. KAWASAKI:

25

MR. KRAMER:

Those are located at

Failure to pullover at any of these

We don't have a

Three minutes.
-- with the first ten miles of ride with
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1

traffic in the national park.

2

example.

This is just one

3

I believe that the majority of rules and

4

regulations imposed by the National Park can be

5

applied to the operations of our crews on State and

6

county roads.

7

State, residents, and the biking industry is

8

paramount.

9

along with the members of the various community

Mutual cooperation between County,

It is in my opinion that residents,

10

associations, appropriate County and State

11

officials, including law enforcement and

12

representatives of the bike companies, form a

13

working group and come up with a uniform set of

14

guidelines or code of conduct for groups operating

15

these bike tours on Maui.

16

•
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Progress must be made starting today.

More

17

things need to be done. Construction of pull-outs,

18

establishing and publishing mandatory passing areas,

19

building of bike lanes, et cetera, all of these

20

issues need our attention and the cooperation of

21

County and State officials, the general publicI and

22

the bike industry.

23

researching pUll-outs and locations of pull-outs ten

24

years ago.

25

where we were going to build the pUll-outs.

This is not new.

We first began

The County took pictures.
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1

Everyone was excited.

2

continue thinking in this fashion will not solve the

3

problem.

4

•

Thank you, Mr. Kramer.

Members, any questions for the testifier?
Member Molina, followed by Member Johnson.

7

VICE-CHAIR MOLINA:

8

MR. KRAMER:

9

VICE-CHAIR MOLINA:

Good morning, Mr. Kramer.

Good morning.
With regards to the issue of the

10

obstruction of traffic caused by the bike tours,

11

what is your company's policy with regards to the

12

I guess the tour leaders when they're going down the

13

road and, you know, traffic is starting to build up,

14

do you instruct your tour guide leaders to tell the

15

vans and all the bikers to pullover after, is it,

16

maybe one car or two cars?

17

•

To

Thank you.

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

5

6

We're still waiting.

MR. KRAMER:

No, there's no set rule as far as one car or

18

two cars.

When it's safe to pullover and we can

19

get the van and trailer off of the road and the

20

traffic that's following us can pass safely, we're

21

going to do that, and there's designated pull-outs

22

on the whole -- you know, from the time that we hit

23

Crater Road coming out of the Ranch until we get

24

down to Paia.

25

they know where all of the pUll-outs are.

Any cruise leader in the industry,
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1

example t the very first one corning out of the Ranch,

2

you know

3

there. Today it's a no passing zone on that whole t

4

you know

5

okay.

6

Can't get the trailer completely off the road

7

againt we're -- sometimes you're forced between a

8

rock and a hard place.

9

do you want to pullover so the traffic can get

t

t

five years ago there was a passing zone

three quarters of a mile long stretch t

So we pullover.

It's a double yellow line.

around you t okay?

11

know t

12

we can pullover in the grass.

13

to do that when it's rainy and muddy.

14

needs to be looked at.

15

t

butt

Do you keep the traffic t or

10

Weather conditions applYt you

I mean there's places where t you know t

VICE CHAIR MOLINA:

ObviouslYt it's hard
But it all

And I just bring that up because those

16

are the calls that I get sometimes about t you know

17

traffic building up and the reason -- why don'tt

18

sometimes t the bike tour operators pullover after

19

maybe two or three cars?

20

public gets at least your view as one of the

21

industry owners.

22
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MR. KRAMER:

So just so at least the

I think if you publish and you set a -- you
you corne up with designated passing areas and

23

know

24

publicize that and educate the community on where

25

that iS t I think it would help everyone.

t

t
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2

I think combined, of course, with your

industry's help of course.
MR. KRAMER:

4

VICE-CHAIR MOLINA:

5

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

6

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

7

testimony.

8

as a part of their requirement, do they require

9

liability coverage where the Federal government is

Absolutely.
Thank you, Chair.
Thank you.

Member Johnson.

Yes, thank you very much for your

When you are in the park, do they also,

also a named insured?

11

MR. KRAMER:

12

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

13

MR. KRAMER:

14

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Absolutely, yes.
And what is the amount --

Two million.
of that coverage?

15

million.

16

required, then, to have that?
MR. KRAMER:

18

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yes, it's in the permit.
Would -

do you have any idea

19

what the cost of that is, you know t

20

company?

22

23

MR. KRAMER:
figure.

Two

And that is every single company is

17

21

•

VICE-CHAIR MOLINA:

3

10

•
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It's substantial.

for your

I don't have the exact

I don't.

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay, and with regard to the

24

pUll-outs that you have spoken about that are in the

25

park area, who paid for the pullouts to be
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1

constructed, or was this a joint effort on your part

2

as well as the Parks Department?

3

I think it was Federal government, and it

had something to do with the bikes.

5

something to do with cars pulling over to let

6

someone pass.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

It also had

Okay, so this was also for -- it

8

wasn't restricted, then, strictly to the bicycles?

9

It was

10

MR. KRAMER:

11

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

To my knowledge, no.

No.

Okay, and with regard to any kind

12

of pUll-outs that would occur on County roadways,

13

who would you anticipate that that be paid for, if

14

it's made exclusively for bicycles?

15
16

17

•

MR. KRAMER:

4

7

•
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CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Mr. Kramer, can you go up to the mike,

please.
MR. KRAMER:

Ten years ago they identified all the

18

pUll-outs on -- for example, on Makawao Avenue, from

19

Paia to Makawao, there was probably nine or ten

20

locations where they -- they thought they could do a

21

pull-out, okay.

22

going to do it. Nobody did anything.

23

sitting in the County somewhere.

24

know, back then we all agreed that participation by

25

the bike companies, we would -- we would look at

We were all excited that we're
It's still

I don't -- you
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1

that.

2

you know, creating pUll-outs.

3

County's responsibility and the State's

4

responsibility to provide the pull-outs.

5

we're paying taxes also.

6

on the roads, so there's licensing fees, you know.

7

I don't want to talk about the political side of it,

8

but --

9

•

I mean, we would look at spending money at -

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

I think it's the

I mean,

We pay a bike fee to ride

But do you think that where

10

there's an impact, would you agree that whoever

11

creates the impact should do something to mitigate

12

the impact in terms of whether it's payment or

13

regulation?

14

MR. KRAMER:

We have traffic problems allover Maui, okay,

15

including the road to Lahaina.

16

see the correlation there.

17

bike -- road, I don't feel should be our

18

responsibility to pay for the pullout.

19

should be a joint effort.

20

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

21

MR. KRAMER:

22

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

23

24

•
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25

I don't -- I can't

Because we're using the

I think it

Okay.

Everyone working together.
I think we'll have some very good

discussion on that subject.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Thank you very much.

Thank you, Member Johnson.

Member Anderson.
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1

2

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Thank you, Chair.

Sir.

3

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

4

MR. KRAMER:

5

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Mr. Kramer.

I'm sorry.
That's okay.

Thank you for

6

being here, Mr. Kramer.

7

purpose of having the van lead the bikes?

8

MR. KRAMER:

9

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Could you explain to us the

The van lead the bikes?
Yeah.

Why can't the van just go

10

on ahead and meet them at some predetermined point,

11

rather than stay right in front of the group of

12

bikes that it's leading?

13

MR. KRAMER:

14

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

15

MR. KRAMER:

16

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

17

18

•
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Well, the van follows the group of bikes.
Okay.

Okay.
Right, that's what I meant to

say.
MR. KRAMER:

It's just for the safety of the clients.

19

You know, we want people to communicate with the van

20

driver to the cruise leader that we have some

21

traffic around, let's get the people over.

22

everybody's over and it's safe to pass, let's get

23

out of the way of the traffic that's following us so

24

that we can just get around in a nice, efficient

25

manner.

We're not here to hold traffic.
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1

Kula.

I've lived on Olinda Road.

We don't ride our

2

bikes on Olinda Road.

3

of the Makawao Association ten years

4

six or seven years ago I know for sure.

5

us not to ride on Olinda Road.

6

Olinda Road.

7

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

We stopped that as a result
excuse me,
They asked

We don't ride on

We pack it up.
On the question that I asked

8

you, Mr. Kramer, would it not be as

9

be sufficient just to have somebody on a bike, you

would it not

10

know, with radio communication to the person in the

11

front?

Would that not be sufficient?

12

MR. KRAMER:

You can't see around, you know, all the

13

time.

14

about -- and we're not spread out.

15

feet apart from all the riders, but sometimes you've

16

got 13 riders.

You're kind of lengthed out.

We're talking
We're about 30

So it's just a safety issue.

17

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

18

MR. KRAMER:

19

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

20

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Okay.

That's how we look at this.
Thank you.

Thank you, Ms. Anderson.

21

Members, any more questions for the testifier?

22

Thank you very much.

23

MR. KRAMER:

Thank you.

24

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

25

MR. EVANSON:

The next testifier is Bill Evanson.

Good morning, Chair, Council Members.
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1

a resident Upcountry.

2

get away from the concrete and traffic in Honolulu,

3

where I was born and raised.

4

at Haleakala National Park that summer,

5

familiar with the bike tours right away.

6

them, my first week there, go head first through a

7

windshield of four elderly visitors as they were

8

rounding the hairpin turn above headquarters and the

9

elderly gentleman almost had a heart attack.

I moved to Maui in 1988 to

I started working up
'88, became

I saw

I was

10

driving up to work one day, one morning, when I came

11

upon the superintendent, Don Reeser, who was stopped

12

in the middle of the road with glass allover him in

13

the driver's seat.

14

far over on the side near Deadman's Turn, as they

15

call it, on Crater Road.

16

The person was injured and had to be taken away.

17

worked there for three years.

18

•
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One of the bikes had veered too

And he's all shook up.

I saw lots of stuff.

I know something about the jurisdiction.

19

It's Federal up at the top.

20

highway.

21

it's been complicated as far as who has authority

22

and jurisdiction.

23

trying to address this now, commercial activity in

24

general.

25

I

It goes down to a State

Turns to County road down the way.

The National Park is really

I work for the State.

I've dealt with
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1

recreation, commercial stuff, visitor industry

2

stuff.

3

God bless the visitors and what they bring to the

4

island, but they're also taking a lot from the

5

residents, the beaches, building hotels.

6

hardly drive down Baldwin Avenue.

7

Baldwin Avenue and avoid the highway, the rush, the

8

bustle, because that's why I moved to Maui, to get

9

away from that.

We have the number one island in the world.

I can't

I purposely take

And my scenic drive down Baldwin

10

Avenue is oftentimes met with the downhill bike tour

11

guys who don't always follow all of your guys'

12

instructions and recommendations.

I don't see many

13

of your drivers here this morning.

If they did, it

14

would be better.

You pack up at Oskie Rice.

There's quite a few things I'd like to

15
16

recommend.

First of all, a working group, come up

17

with some recommendations in at least six months.

18

The time has come.

19

for some regulation here.

20

it.

21

Federal, the State governments -- more ready,

22

willing, and able to act on these things because you

23

guys live here.

24

And moreover, would you guys drive a bike

25

you personally ride a bike down there the way these

The industry is asking you folks
They want it.

They need -- the Council has been

They need
out of the

You know what we're talking about.
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1

guys are doing it?

2

ride a bike when it came to Maui.

3

safe.

It's just not

5

down to Paia is just unacceptable nowadays with the

6

amount of traffic, with the numbers of people that

7

we have.

8

it a day.

9

their bikes allover by the tennis courts, where we

They should pack it up at Oskie and call
They end up down in Paia.

They're laying

10

can't now park.

11

access.

12

transportation, not for recreation.

13

takes his skateboard out there, he's going to get a

14

ticket for recreating on the road.

15

give everything to the visitors.

16

able to go down to the beach without too much humbug

17

and too much hassles, so a mandatory pull-offs where

18

they have to, even if it's just one car behind them,

19

out of respect for the local people.

20

•

I wouldn't

Anything below Oskie Rice arena, Makawao,

4

•

I don't think so.

It's public -- impeding public

User conflicts.

A word of advice:

Roads are for
My friend's kid

We need to not
I would like to be

Be humble, be respectful,

21

err on the side of the local people and your

22

industry will be better off.

23

to concession out the industry.

24

of it to help offset the costs of regulating the

25

industry.

Just to name a few

Request for proposals
Make some money off

- I'd be happy and
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1

willing and able to participate in any kind of

2

working group as an Upcountry resident whose

3

daily life is affected by this.

4

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Members

5
6

•

•

Thank you very much

not

I

l

Mr. Evanson.

any questions for the testifier?

If

thank you again.

l

7

MR. EVANSON:

Thank you.

8

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

9

MR. BORGE:

Next testifier is Pat Borge.

Good morning.

I'm not here to stop the --

10

you know

11

be regulated.

12

I'm -

13

get into studies and studies and studies.

14

to act on the situation.

15

was like ten years ago.

16

roads.

17

know

18

I wonder who they interviewed.

19

interview the local people.

l

I

to stop the bike tours

l

but they need to

You guys already know the numbers and

I just hope that you Council Members don't
You have

Maui is not Maui what it
There's more traffic on the

There's more people on this island.

And you

we always saYI Maui's the number one island.
They didn't

20

They can tell you a different story about

21

Maui being number one, because our lifestyle has

22

changed.

23

some of the issues and you always go, ohl we -

24

Maui's changed.

25

goes.

The other local people come up here on

I mean, sorrYI that's the way it

That's from chickens to -- chickens in their
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1

backyard to their dogs.

2

So this -

Maui's changed.

so this bicycle tours got to

3

realize, this is not the '80s.

4

'60s.

5

roads.

6

Kula Highway going to Oskie Rice arena, I haul

7

horses all the time, even though I live in the

8

Makena area, Makawao is still my home, Haiku is

9

still my home.

Maui's changed.

This is not the

We got more people on the

I had an incident once on that road from

My parents grew up in Haiku.

Maui

10

is Maui.

Maui is my island, and no matter what

11

things happen, when these people started these

12

tours, when Hannibal Tavares knew this was coming

13

and nobody acted, he knew it was coming.

14

just a matter of time, because it's all about the

15

money.

16

somebody's life?

17

you do that?

It was

So how you going to put a price tag on
You don't -- I don't know, how can

18

As far as I'm concerned, a bike tour should

19

end a ride where Haleakala Ranch, they're going to

20

have this little station there for the MTVs and

21

their horseback rides and they're whatever they

22

have.

23

bike tours should come down from the crater and stop

24

there and that's it.

25

be on State highways and County highways.

They're going to put a little store.

Those

They should not be allowed to
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line.

I almost -- one time one of these guys told

2
3

me to come around on his bike riders.

4

three horses on a 19-foot trailer, coming around the

5

corner and here's another oncoming traffic.

6

choice, either I go straight, push the guy off on

7

the shoulder of the road or I take out eight riders,

8

eight bicycle riders.

9

driving towards me in his pickup truck climbed the

10

I had a

It's lucky the guy that was

Now, if I went over a little bit to the

12

right, I would have wiped out eight riders on the

13

bike.

14

brah, and gave me the shaka sign and sorry.

15

him, today was your lucky day.

16

•

I'm hauling

bank.

11

•

There's too much traffic.

You know what that guy told me?

Hey, sorry,
I told

But that's the kinds of things that happen

17

all the time.

And I don't care what they say

18

because they have different workers all the time.

19

They don't have the same workers.

20

turnover rate is so high.

21

dollar industry, but that's the price we paid for

22

all of this development and we have to set rules and

23

regulations.

24

lifestyle is very important here, and it's all about

25

respect, and, I'm sorry -- like I said, I'm not

I mean, the

Yes/ it's a billion

Don't forget the people.
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trying to stop you people from running your

2

business.

3

there's ways of doing things and you've got to

4

respect the people of Maui

5

I mean

6

time.

7

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

8

9

•

l

I'm in the tourist business myself, but

and

that's the way I feel.

Thank you

for the testifier?
MR. BORGE:

l

1

l

you know

I

Thank you for your

Mr. Borge.

Any questions

If not, thank you again.

Can I -- since this is the Public Works

10

meeting here and I don't get a chance to come out

11

here all the time, there's a road issue out in the

12

Makena area going out to La Perouse BaYI by

13

Ahihii'ihi BaYI and there's some reason the State is

14

not claiming that road and the County's not claiming

15

that road.

16

call the Police Department for helpl they said

17

they're understaffed, we should call DLNR.

18

•
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And we have problems out there.

When we

DLNR said they're understaffed, we have to

19

handle it ourselves.

20

issues going on out there, and I would like to bring

21

it up to the Public Works to bring it on the agenda

22

to decide who owns that road out there so we can

23

have some safety out in that area also.

24

very much.

25

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

I mean, there's a lot of

Thank you, Mr. Borge.
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1

MR. BORGE:

Portagee.

2

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

3

any chance?

•

•

You're not from Pu'unene, by

Next testifier is Albert Esquibel.

4

5

I know.

MR. ESQUIBEL:

Thank you, Mr. Chair, Council Members, and

6

fellow citizens.

My name's Albert Esquibel.

I work

7

for Northrop Grumman.

8

and for the last 22 years we've been going up and

9

down that mountain and having to share the road with

We work at the observatories,

10

the tour bike companies.

I have a highly

11

specialized work force.

12

two other locations around the world, so all our

13

training is very specialized.

14

specialized work force.

We only have three other -

I have a very, very

About two months ago we had a bicycle

15
16

accident, or as the bike had an accident with us.

17

My driver saw the accident corning.

18

on the hairpin as well as he could.

19

hit us.

20

reason and I had an accident that hurt 37 percent of

21

my available work force,

22

support the mission to the U.S. Air Force that I do

23

right now.

24

that I employ are local.

25

us have only been here about 20, 25 years.

He pulled over
The bicyclist

Had we not been paying attention for some

I would not be able to

Approximately 80 percent of the people
The other four or five of
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1

fill the occasional positions that I do have, it's

3

very hard to find qualified local people to fill

4

these high-tech jobs that are environmentally

5

friendly and do not necessarily cause some of the

6

other disruptions that the rest of the tourist

7

industry does.

9

We really need to see some regulation as far
as traffic safety, cultural respect, environmental

10

management, and the regulation is way overdue.

11

way I see it, there's at least three types of bike

12

companies.

13

mountain biking company.

14

true or not.

15

the side of the summit.

16

the side of the summit every single day.

17

•

When I go out recruiting for people trying to

2

8

•
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The

There appears to be a disorganized
I'm not sure if that's

It appears that they're riding over
I see the tire tracks over

There are the regulated companies, which

18

provide the leader and the escort vehicle, and then

19

there's the unregulated ones

20

primarily outside of the park.

21

the most dangerous ones.

22

6,500 feet,

23

six years old or even younger maybe, they look to be

24

very, very small.

25

don't know the rules of the road.

l

and they work
These are probably

They start out at about

they appear to have children as young as

To me, that's too young.

They

They don't have

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

76

PW 11/28/05

•

1

the attention span that's required to be going 35

2

miles an hour.

3

going 35 miles an hour, the posted speed limit,

4

otherwise they're imposing a -

5

traffic.

•

they're impeding

All the tour companies hold up traffic.

6

•

They are not strong enough to be

7

cause road rage.

8

though their intentions may be good, but when

9

they're trying to wave you by on a hairpin turn

They

They try to direct traffic, even

10

while they are still rolling, they should pullover

11

and let you pass, not make you compete with them for

12

the road.

13

stops, they will pull their vehicle out to stop

14

oncoming traffic so they can get their people on the

15

road.

16

They'll just stop all traffic, whether it's coming

17

uphill or downhill.

18

You can tell the older lead bikers.

19

to do.

20

the others spread them out over a quarter mile or

21

longer.

22

stay in their lane.

23

playing games.

24

backwards with their hands raised in the hairpin

25

turn.

When they are at one of these designated

Many times they will take both lanes.

They're just too much turnover.
They know what

They have a much tighter group.

You can see

The older, more experienced drivers will
They will not be weaving and

They won't be standing up going
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MS. KAWASAKI:

Three minutes.

2

MR. ESQUIBEL:

In conclusion, basically we need a lot of

3

regulation.

4

need something like an age limit, both a lower and a

5

higher age limit.

6

rules of the road, which would imply that they need

7

a driver's license.

8

maintain minimum speed limits at the posted speed

9

limit.

We need some minimum standards.

They need to be able to

And if we can't regulate them, stop them

until we do.

11

don't wait, regulate.

12

It's way overdue.

13

again.

14

I, like the other gentleman said,
It's time.

It's overdue.

Somebody's going to get killed

It's got to stop.

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Thank you very much.

Members, any question for the testifier?

15

17

We

They need to at least know the

10

16

Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Thank you, Chairman.

18

Robert, thank you for coming and sharing your

19

experience with us.

20

tracks going over the side of the summit, what did

21

you mean by that?

22

•
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MR. ESQUIBEL:

When you said you see tire

Right as you approach the summit, there's

23

a spur road that goes to the observatories, there's

24

apparently some people using that as a shortcut.

25

They may be going trying to do Skyline Drive or
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1

something, but at that particular intersection they

2

just jump over the curb and they go across the open

3

terrain.

4

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

5

MR. ESQUIBEL:

You mean the vans do?

They have quit going on the spur road, but

6

they were really tearing up that spur road because

7

they try to turn on it and sometimes they don't wait

8

till they get to the end where it's a little bit

9

wider and you'll see where they eventually gouge the

10

side of the mountain, but it's mostly the bicyclists

11

going over the side of the road, over the side.

12

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

13

MR. ESQUIBEL:

14

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

15

MR. ESQUIBEL:

16

17

The bicycle what?

The bicyclists, the -The bicyclists, yeah, okay.

-- is the one that's jumping the curb and

going over to catch the other spur road.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

I see.

And then you also said

18

something about unregulated groups that start out at

19

the 6,500 foot level?

20

•
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MR. ESQUIBEL:

The National Park has a fairly good set of

21

rules that people are supposed to follow, and that

22

being said, they are followed in the road.

23

in the park. Once they get outside of the park, it's

24

a free for all. They bunch up together, they will

25

actually pass the unregulated people who are barely
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moving along.

2

three groups of bikes going down, the unregulated

3

being passed by one of the regulated who had another

4

regulated catch up to them.

5

came up, grabbed the mirror of the other driver.

6

was going -

7

going down the highway.

8
9

10

11
12

•

79

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

And so how do you determine
I mean, just

in your MR. ESQUIBEL:

The unregulated will not have an escort

vehicle or lead biker.

14

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

All right.

Thank you very much.

Thank you very much.

Members, any more question for the testifier?

15

Thank you very much, Mr. Esquibel.
Next testifier is Thomas Search.

17

MR. SEARCH:

Mr. Chair, Council Members, and city people,

19

I just

20

to really comment on my own.

21

kind of company.

I will state this:

22

on the mountain.

I am a bicycle guide.

23

want to comment on a few things.

24
25

He

I could go on for days.

who's regulated and who's unregulated?

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

18

The other bicyclist

they were having a casual conversation

13

16

•

I've seen one time where there was

my name's Thomas Search and I'm just here
I'm not here for any
I do work up
But I just

I think everybody that's spoken so far has
really valid points.

I truly do.

And I've been up
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1

there for many, many years, I might add, okay.

2

Everybody, I think Ms. Krash had a lot of valid

3

points, in fact everybody did, Pat included, but I

4

would like to state a couple things myself.

5

think we need some more, if you want to, more rules,

6

I truly do, but I also want to comment a little bit

7

on the aloha.

8

Upcountry many years myself and I love it Upcountry,

9

and I know what you guys are talking about, but we

I do

That is a two-way street, and I lived

10

do need -- but we do need aloha both ways.

11

know, as a bike guide, I can probably call the

12

police every day about people passing us very, very

13

unsafe, and I know what the police would say every

14

day, you know, we're not up there, and I understand,

15

it's the same way when you guys have complaints,

16

they're not there.

17

day problems that do occur both ways.

18

talking about the aloha spirit, we must remember

19

that Maui is a tourist destination r and it's

20

marvelous.

21

economy, that's for sure, so we're all involved in

22

this. And as a bike guide, I just wanted to say

23

want to represent myself and the rest of my friends

24

up there.

25

been up there for years and I've seen a change a

You

But as a bike guide, I see every

We all love it.

And when I'm

But it's a trickle down

I think we do a very good job.
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whole lot in the last -- just the last couple, three

2

years, I think we've done a real good job, all

3

companies included, I think we've done a real good

4

job trying to apply more rules where we don't hold

5

up the traffic.
Now, it's going to hold up traffic.

6

•

7

go 35 miles an hour, for goodness sakes.

8

do that.

9

when we see problems, okay.

We can't

But it is up to us as guides to pullover
You know, we're talking

10

about the aloha spirit as well and how some people

11

are talking about us, if I may say so, urinating on

12

the road, blah, blah, blah.

13

we had snow up on our mountain, I was really

14

disappointed with us as a people of Maui.

15

what, seven inches of snow, what, I think three

16

years ago.

17

park for a day.

18

I was embarrassed as a citizen of this place, okay.

19

It's not our tourists or it wasn't our bicyclist

20

people that did that.

21

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

22

MR. SEARCH:

23

•

We can't

You know, the last time

We had,

We, as a people of Maui, destroyed that
Plate lunch trash.

I was appalled.

It was --

Mr. Search, please --

-- people that live on Maui.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: -- address the Council Members --

24

MR. SEARCH:

Yes.

25

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

-- rather than the audience.
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1

MR. SEARCH:

2

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

3

MR. SEARCH:

I'm sorry .
Thank you.

I'm sorry, but, you know, so it's a two-way

4

street, the aloha spirit.

5

job -- just to wind this baby up.

6

great job.

7

myself -- I hope to be a professional, and I want my

8

fellow workers of all the companies to be

9

professional, because we do represent our industry.

I think we do a great
I think we do a

We're up here to make a living.

I find

10

We, the boys, represent -- not these company owners,

11

but the boys represent, and I think as a bunch of

12

guys of all five companies, I think we do a pretty

13

good job of representing our industry.

14

That's really all I had to say, sir.

Thanks

15

very much for your time and for the Council Members.

16

Thank you.

17

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

18
19

•
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Thank you very much.

Members, any question for the testifier?

If

not, thank you again.

20

MR. SEARCH:

Thank you.

21

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

22

MR. FELICIANO:

Next testifier is Phil Feliciano.

My name is Phil Feliciano, and I'm the

23

manager and owner of Cruiser Phil's Volcano Riders.

24

Aloha kakahiaka.

25

Committee for its interest in the safety of our

Mahalo to the Public Works
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guests on bicycles and the motoring public in the

2

communities that we tour through.

3

•

I've been actively involved in the bike tour

4

industry for the past 20 years, first as an

5

employee, and in 1998 I started my own company.

6

here today to help you in any way that I can to

7

answer any questions you may have regarding my

8

company's policies and procedures as it pertains to

9

this meeting.

I'm

The safety of our guests and the

10

motor -- is the most top priority.

11

on what we do daily.

12

•
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It's paramount

There's two divisions in the bicycle tour

13

industry.

You heard some people touch on it a

14

little bit.

15

unguided tour, of which my company is a guided tour

16

company.

17

leader, the point man out front on a bicycle, the

18

van and trailer following directly behind.

19

guided tour companies are allowed to ride their

20

bicycles in the national park.

21

about regulations ( we're heavily regulated in the

22

national park on what we do and our policies and

23

procedures as it pertains to safety and bringing

24

people through the park. Maui is a world class

25

visitor destination, again, voted number one island

There's the guided tour and the

This is the one that has the cruise

Permits, we talk
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in the world.

2

number one activity that visitors select when they

3

come to Maui.

4

over 117,000 people that did the bicycle tours, that

5

experienced Haleakala from top to bottom, 38 miles.

6

It's the only place in the world that people can do

7

this.

8

Mexico, perhaps the most unique experience of a lot

9

of these people's life times.

10

•

In 2004, we estimate there's probably

The climate's like going from Alaska to

The visitor spends, we estimate, based on the

11

numbers that we could get together, probably over

12

$12 million a year on bicycle tours, of which most

13

of that money stays right here, Maui County, State

14

of Hawaii, in the form of activity, agent

15

commissions, payrolls, the restaurants that we go

16

to, State and Federal taxes, the industries that

17

help support us, tire companies, maintenance shops,

18

et cetera, et cetera.

19

•

The bicycle tour's possibly the

In addition, Makawao and Paia towns have seen

20

a resurgence of visitors

visitor dollars put

21

directly back into those stores.

22

testimony that we just pass through.

23

may pass through, but while we're passing through,

24

we're stopping at stores r Kamoda's, people buying

25

pastries, you know, for our guests, talking about

You know, we heard
Not true.
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the restaurants and the shops, how effective it

2

would be for them to spend their dollars to go back

3

to Makawao and Paia.

4

correlation there.

5

through and these merchants never see those people

6

again. They wouldn't know that Makawao existed in

7

part if it wasn't for the bicycle tours.

8
9

•

So there's a direct
It's not that we just pass

The number one concern rapidly.

I'll wrap this up

What I'd like to see happen here today as

10

a result of this meeting is, number one, the Maui

11

Police Department regularly enforce traffic and

12

speed limit laws on the bicycle route.

13

lot about how we're holding up traffic.

14

all the traffic signs and I can present it to the

15

to you all later.

16

couple of 30-mile-an-hour sections, we're

17

doing the speed limit.

For the most part, we're

18

doing the speed limit.

One section of the entire

19

route that's 35 miles an hour.

20

pull-out/ and we let cars go by there as quickly as

21

possible.

22

•
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We hear a
I monitored

15, 20, 25 miles an hour, a

And there's a

Two, County of Maui to continue with time

23

lines for the pUll-outs that we talked about so many

24

years ago.

25

tables in front of the schools.

Number three, consider putting speed
I believe there's
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1

three schools or four schools that we pass, Baldwin

2

Avenue down, 20 miles an hour.

3

20 miles an hour.

5

Police Department, the public, you know, avail

6

themselves of the opportunity to come on our bike

7

rides.

8

ride.

9

ride in the van.

10
11

13

14

We'll put it together.

Come on the bike

If you're not qualified to ride a bicycle,
See what it is we do and we'll

help you in any way we possibly can.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Thank you.

Thank you.

Members, any questions for the testifier?

12

Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Thank you, Phil, for providing

15

us with this information and for coming today.

16

Would you know how much time it takes from the

17

summit to the bottom of Crater Road for a typical

18

tour?

19

MR. FELICIANO:

To get to the bottom of Crater Road/

20

Intersection 37 and 378, probably right around an

21

hour and a half to an hour and 45 minutes, perhaps.

22

In that range.

23

•

The cars aren't.

And number four, Members of the Council, Maui

4

•

Again, we're doing

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

And then how long does it take

24

to get from the bottom of Crater Road -- I'm

25

assuming that most bike tours go all the way to
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1

MR. FELICIANO:

3

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Yes.
So how long does it take to get

from the bottom of Crater Road to Paia?

5

MR. FELICIANO:

6

minutes.

7

With the stops, probably another 45

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

And so how would it impact your

8

company or any company if the tour was regulated to

9

end at the end of Crater Road?

10
11

•

Paia?

2

4

•
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MR. FELICIANO:

If the entire industry did it that way,

we could live with that.

12

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

13

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

14

VICE CHAIR MOLINA:

15

Okay, thank you very much.

Thank you very much.

Member Molina.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Good

morning, Mr. Feliciano.

16

MR. FELICIANO:

Good morning.

17

VICE-CHAIR MOLINA:

You mentioned in your testimony about

18

the unguided bicycle tours.

Do you have any

19

information for the Committee how many of these

20

bicycle -- unguided bicycle tour companies are out

21

there?

22

yours, you educate your clients about the road

23

conditions.

24

your knowledge, how do they operate with their

25

clients?

And my understanding, at with companies like

How do the unguided bicycle tours, to

Do they just basically say here's the
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money, starting point is there?
MR. FELICIANO:

3

couldn't really answer that.

4

their tours.

5

unguided people with youngsters.

6

tour has a minimum age of 12 years old.

7

probably, as an industry, look at that, maybe raise

8

that minimum.

9

their minimum age.

10

•

We do interact with

Someone mentioned that they see the
The guided bicycle
We could

The unguided people, I don't know

We heard somebody talk about a maximum age,

11

also.

12

somebody telling me that I can't go ride a

13

skateboard because you're too old.

14

applies for a bicycle.

15

how to answer that.

16

tours.

17

VICE CHAIR MOLINA:

18

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

You know, I'm 52 years old.

I wouldn't want

Same thing

So, you know, I don't know

I can only speak of the guided

Okay, thank you.
Thank you.

Any more questions for the

19

testifier?

20

The next testifier is Kurt James Sturgeon.

21

•

I've never done one of their tours, so I

MR. STURGEON:

Again, thank you very much.

Good morning.

My name's Kurt Sturgeon,

22

and I'm an employee of the -- in the bike industry.

23

I've been everything from a driver to a guide.

24

I'm just here pretty much on my behalf as a member

25

of the community itself and as someone who'S
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2
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employed by the company.
And I came in here listening to this, you

3

know, and just from my personal experience, I'd like

4

to say I've done both tours.

5

and the unguided.

6

here from the other companies. It's pretty much --

7

but I will speak about my experience and my position

8

as a guide for the industry, and I've worked for

9

several different companies, and I know that

I've done the guided

I've taken friends of mine down

10

safety's paramount to what we do, and, you know, as

11

an individual, I'm responsible for up to 13 people

12

and their lives and their safety coming down the

13

mountain.

14

And I have a family and friends that -- and I

15

live here myself, and, you know, it's a pretty

16

awesome responsibility to have somebody's life in

17

your hands when you're riding a bike down the

18

mountain, you know, and it's also my responsibility

19

for their safety, and it's my responsibility to get

20

them off the road and to make sure that we cooperate

21

with the people in the community and the people in

22

the park and the people on the roads and the people

23

whose restaurants I recommend that my guests

24

go visit.

25

You know what I mean?

And so since I have all these different
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1

responsibilities -- I heard one of the Council

2

Members saying I've also had to compete with the

3

bike groups going down here, and I know that my boss

4

right now, my

5

that I'm to go at a minimum pace down the mountain,

6

and I -- and as a part of my safety briefing in the

7

morning when I give those people the safe rules of

8

biking, which I'm required to do by the park and my

9

owner, I do that every day and I specifically tell

- the owner of my company informs me

10

those people if you're not comfortable on the bike,

11

you don't ride.

12

upon me to determine whether you're a good

13

rider or not.

14

And it's-- you know, it's incumbent

And I know -

I've been doing this since 1998

15

off and on, and so that's a couple thousand trips

16

under my belt, and a handful of people I've had fall

17

with no major injuries because I take -- it's

18

incumbent upon me as a person to watch out for these

19

people's safety, and it's also incumbent upon me to

20

watch out for people's safety when I've got people

21

flying by me in Kula on the double yellow lines

22

because they're late to take their children to

23

school or whatever.

24

My responsibility is to take people down the

25

mountain in a safe and orderly fashion, which I do,

That's not my responsibility.
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1

and I pride myself on that, you know, because that's

2

how I make my living.

3

how I feed myself, and so 11m not here to compete

4

and I don't think any of the other tour guides are

5

up here to compete with anybody else either.

6

know, welre all pretty good friends.

It's how I make my rent, it's

You

7

It's a rare group of people that do this, you

8

know, and we have to cooperate with each other every

9

day.

I know for a fact that when 11m coming down

10

the mountain, I cooperate with all the other

11

my group's going slow, I pull my group over and let

12

the other groups go by.

13

reciprocated upon on my behalf, too, when welre

14

going down here so welre not out there five, six,

15

seven groups in a row.

16

if

And I know that that's

I mean -- and of course, like with any other

17

business, when any other thing in the world that

18

happens, in my experience from working in the -- you

19

know, a wide variety of different jobs, you're going

20

to have people that do things right and you're going

21

to have people that borderline, you know.

22

going to happen no matter where we go.

23

•
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So that's

But I do impress upon the Council Members and

24

everything to regulate this industry because, you

25

know, it's a -- it can get too big.

You know, it
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can get too big and it can get -- you know, things
- they have people up there that aren't doing, you

3

know, things properly and the people who are going

4

to stick around are going to stick around and you

5

won't have a big, high turnover, you know.

6

people who like the jobs are going to stick around

7

and they're going to do what they're supposed to do.

8

And I think if you regulate the industry like the

9

park did, we only have a limited number of vans that

The

10

can go up there now and, you know, we have to -

11

I know because I interact with the park rangers on a

12

daily basis, that we do a good job.

13

of us do a good job, and most of us, you know, take

14

on the responsibility of bringing these people down

15

the mountain safe.

16

•
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and

You know, most

It's not my goal to come down here and have

17

somebody get hurt when they're visiting the island.

18

It's my responsibility to show them the island and

19

give them the tour about it, educate them to the

20

history, the people, how the island was developed

21

and what's going on, the whats and the whys of Maui

22

and how it became what it is and why it's so

23

beautiful, you know, and that's what my

24

responsibility is and that's what I like to do for

25

the people.

And that's all I've got to say.
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3

Thank you very much.

Members, any questions for the testifier?
Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Thank you

5

sharing with us.

6

unguided as well as guided?

7

MR. STURGEON:

8

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

9

NO

I

l

Kurt

for coming and

I

You mentioned that you've worked

I've ridden unguided.

Oh

okaYI you've ridden unguided

l

tours.

10

MR. STURGEON:

11

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

12

•

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

2

4

•
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Uh-huh l as a customer.
As a customer.

Can you explain

the difference to us?

13

MR. STURGEON:

Absolutely.

14

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

15

MR. STURGEON:

Thank you.

My experience is -- that's how I came to

16

work in the industrYI I came in a guided tour first l

17

so I noticed it was a lot safer because I have a van

18

behind me and I have a guide in front of me that

19

knows the road, got a couple hundred trips or so,

20

gives me signals when to slow down, when to go fast r

21

when I can, when I can't, so it's kind of like a

22

controlled environment

23

I feel that that's the safer tripl in my experience,

24

that's why I work for those companies. With the

25

unguided tour, I'm given a bicycle, a map, a helmet,

I

so to speak.
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4

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Well, now, do they take the

bikes up to the crater and -MR. STURGEON:

Yeah, they take us up

I was taken up

and I was dropped off and given a bicycle and

6

there's the road.

7

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

And so these unguided tours,

8

they also get permits from the park service to do

9

this?
MR. STURGEON:

I don't know the business of the unguided

11

bike tours, ma'am, so I couldn't answer your

12

question.

13

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

14

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

15

Okay.

Thank you very much.

Thank you very much.

questions for the testifier?
MR. STURGEON:

17

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

18

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM THE AUDIENCE:

19

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

21

Any more

Thank you very much.

16

20

•

a backpack and I can see it when I see it.

5

10

•
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Thank you.
Next testifier is Ralph Johnson.

Thank you.

He had to leave.

Next testifier is Robert

Thiel.
MR. THIEL:

Good morning { everybody.

My name's Rob

22

Thiel.

I'm a professional bicycle tour guide.

I

23

work up on Haleakala mountain, been doing this for a

24

number of years.

25

law enforcement officer.

I'm also a former EMT and a former
The president of my
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company is also a former law enforcement officer.

2

Our adherence to safety, our concern for safety is

3

number one, and it's not something that we say is

4

number one.

5

management 5,000 times a day.

6

absolutely, we're nuts about it.

7

nuts about risk management.

8

cognizant of every single day is that I can be sued,

9

I can lose my -- get my pay garnished, I can lose a

It's -- we must say the words risk
I mean, just
We're absolutely

One thing I'm very

10

home or whatever for negligence, okay, regardless of

11

the insurance the company has, whatever, if I'm

12

negligent in watching out for somebody's safety on a

13

tour, I can pay for that for the rest of my life.

14

So safety's a very, very important thing to us,

15

okay.

16

•
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The National Park Service has been the leader

17

in creating and enforcing regulations.

18

regulations that the National Park Service has in

19

place were developed by the downhill bicycle

20

companies, and the National Park Service sayst hey,

21

you know what, that's a good idea. We're going to

22

make that a rule.

23

going to make that rule.

24

it's gonna make it a rule.

25

bike companies themselves.

HeYI

Most of the

that's a good idea, we're
Hey, that's a good idea,
But they come from the
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I hear about t you know t people riding over

1

2

the rim of the crater or the rim of spur road up

3

top, those are people who came to Maui with their

4

own bicycle on an airplane and are on vacation and

5

are not with any tour companYt they haven't even

6

rented a bike from anyone.

7

They have nothing to do with us.

8

tours are the only tours that operate in the park.

9

The regulations are very strict as far as spacingt

They're on their own.
The guided bike

10

as far as how far apart the tours have to be.

11

required to launch not less than five minutes apart

12

from the top of the mountain.

13

tour every five minutest required to keep half mile

14

apart on the road t and t yes t occasionally we do get

15

close together because occasionally you have a slow

16

tour and they're behind a

17

you don't know you're on them until you're on them t

18

and then we back off again or we call each other on

19

the radio and arrange to pass each other so the

20

slower tour's behind and the more quickly tour can

21

get by_

22

•
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We're

We can only launch a

- curves and in trees and

The single greatest problem that we have on

23

the road is impatient drivers t residents who just

24

don't get it.

25

being a school bus and people just blasting past

If you can imagine each of our tours
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1

school buses and cutting off stop school buses,

2

that's the situation that we're in every

3

day on the road, okay.

4

personal danger from an irate motorist who just

5

can't wait 30 seconds.

6

I have problems with are moms picking up kids at

7

school.

8

important thing.

9

police getting to an accident, is a mom picking up a

10

•

They just

At least once a week I'm in

The most severe people that

- apparently it's the most
It's more important that the

kid from school, all right.
And, yes, do people see the bike tour guides

11

•
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12

lose their temper once in a while and maybe, you

13

know, show a little displeasure, yes, because what

14

we go through on a daily basis is what the cops go

15

through on a daily basis, it's the public coming

16

back at us.

17

I hear people talking about, you know, people

18

urinating and toilet paper on their lawns and

19

everything else, that's not us. Nobody makes money.

20

Nobody becomes a top industry asking their

21

passengers to squat on the side of the road in

22

front of 12 other people.

23

cars, it's tourists, it's whatever.

24

okay.

25

But the safety concerns are paramount.

It's not us.

It's rental

It's not us,

We don't have people who break the rules.
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do get new cruise leaders, okay.

2

by Maui PD.

3

pass us if doing so would encourage you to break the

4

double yellow line. Because of that, there are very

5

few places where we can pass.

6

behind us for a while?

7

we can't let you pass until we can get way over to

8

the side of the road and let you pass on a clear

9

straightaway where you're not going to cross the

10
11

•

We are restricted

We are not allowed to encourage you to

So are you stuck

Yes, because we've been told

double yellow line.
So I think the number one thing this Council

12

could do right now or maybe the bike industry or

13

maybe both together cooperating and paying for half,

14

take a half page ad out in the newspaper and inform

15

the public of the rules, let them know, yes, the

16

bike tour has to do this, this, this, and this.

17

They're also not allowed to do this, this, and this,

18

and that's why you're stuck behind them for a mile,

19

because they're not allowed to let you pass in a

20

place where they're going to encourage you to cross

21

the double yellow line.

22

•
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I think the biggest key we have in this

23

industry right now to solve this problem and to

24

quell everything that's going on is to simply inform

25

and educate.

I think if there was a half page ad in
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1

the newspaper two, three Sundays in a row just

2

letting everybody know what the ground rules are, I

3

have a feeling maybe six months from now we'd all be

4

back here saying, you know what, that didn't work,

5

and if so, so be it, but I think right now we had

6

in one case we had a police officer with the PA

7

speaker on her car yelling to a tour in a

8

residential neighborhood, get your people off the

9

road.

You're

10

supposed to be in the bike lane, right, if we have

11

the occasional police officer

12

memorize every rule and every law in the book.

13

They're human beings, too, but if we have the

14

occasional police officer who doesn't know the rules

15

and how it works, how do we expect the public to

16

know how it works?

and they can't

If we simply inform the public, let them know

17

•

You don't belong on the road service.

18

what's going on, we are doing a very good job

19

of making sure our people are trained and making

20

sure they know what's going on.

21

while we have somebody who pulls something stupid

22

and, you know what, you know who gets on them?

23

do.

24

the neck to bike guides in the entire industry,

25

right here, okay.

And every once in a

We

If you want to ask who's the biggest pain in

I-
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1

MS. KAWASAKI:

Five minutes.

2

MR. THIEL:

lose my temper when I get to the bottom of

3

the hill, I see somebody doing something stupid.

4

let them know it.

5

to the other.

6

thing to do.

7

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

8

MR. THIEL:

9

10
11

•

We have radio communication one

We're like, dude, that was a stupid

Thank you, Mr. Thiel.

All right, information and education is the

key to solving this problem right here.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
testifier?

Members, any questions for the
If not, thank you again.

Next testifier is Charles Maxwell.

12

•

We

13

MR. MAXWELL:

Aloha, Mr. Chairman.

14

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

15

MR. MAXWELL:

Good morning.

Council Members.

My name is Charles

16

Kauluwehi Maxwell.

I'm speaking here for my family,

17

but also for the kupuna that are kupuna for the

18

national park.

19

back there and I'm amazed that nobody talks about

20

Haleakala as the most sacred site on Maui.

21

what the Hawaiians call a wao'akua, place where the

22

gods live.

23

live.

24

years old, was taken to Haleakala to see the

25

sunrise, the sunset, but to be thought about all the

We have a committee.

I'm sitting

It is

This is waokanaka, where the people

I was raised up in Kula, from about nine

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

PW 11/28/05

•

101

1

different things the crater and Pele and the

2

demigods, the gods and the goddesses that live up

3

there.

4

•

I heard the word aloha spirit mentioned.

5

I was a police officer for 15 years here on Maui,

6

and two weeks ago I went up to Haleakala Crater to

7

do a ceremony, we have special alters that were

8

built up there, and on my way down with my family,

9

my four- and five-year-old grandchildren, we were

10

following a tourist car and she blew her horn and

11

the guide turned around and showed us the finger.

12

And I tell you, if I could, I would have made him

13

eat that finger. That is such an insult, such an

14

insult not only to us, to me as a kupuna, but to the

15

children that's in my car.

16

My radio show on Friday, I was inundated by

17

calls from people living on Maui, inundated.

18

a call from this tourist, this ladYI grandmother.

19

She says, I was so embarrassed.

20

Haleakala Crater and someone in front of me blew the

21

horn and this guide turned around and showed me the

22

finger.

23

really poor thing.

24

•

And

25

It's a haole lady.

I had

I was coming down

Poor thing.

She was

She was very hurt.

Rocky Santos, who everybody knows, he called
me on my radio show.

He lives in Makawao, born and
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1

raised in Makawao.

2

what, we cannot even park when the bicycles are

3

there.

4

all in the parking and Makawao town is not good to

5

go there with the bicycles.

6

Reeser, year and a half ago, the kupuna council did,

7

to regulate not only the bicycles, but the buses and

8

the tourists that are going up to Haleakala Crater.

9

They are loving it to death.

10

•

They park all in the disabled parking and

That is the problem.

I recommended to Don

We have too many people

11

here.

12

moving back to the mainland, because that's the

13

problem, we've got too many people.

14

too many people, you got to learn to live together

15

and they are not.

16

that is the problem, they're not respecting.

17

teaches these people going up to the crater about

18

the sacredness of Haleakala, nobody.

19

them if this wonderful site you get looking down at

20

the three islands in front of you, but there is more

21

to Haleakala Crater.

22

•

He said Uncle Charlie, you know

I'm so happy when I hear there's people

When you have

They're not living together, and
Nobody

Nobody tells

We asked the National Park a year and a half

23

ago, and I plan to pursue it with the new

24

superintendent, to stop people going up and regulate

25

the people that are going up to the crater.
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let them pull and let them -- there's no such thing

2

as self-regulation.

3

this chamber talking about the bike tours.

4

has happened.

5

There are some people that are terrific and some

6

bike companies -- I got to say that, but the ones

7

that are bad is the ones that are giving everybody a

8

bad name.

9

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Thank you.
Thank you, Mr. Maxwell.

11

thank you again.

13

Nothing

They can't regulate themselves.

Members, any questions for Mr. Maxwell?

If not,

The next testifier is D.F. Kingman.
MR. KINGMAN:

Good morning, and thank you for giving me a

14

few minutes to speak.

15

couple of points.

16

•

Fifteen years ago we were in

10

12

•
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I wanted to offer just a

Number one, a very basic qualifier to the

17

Councilors and to everybody here, all my fellow

18

speakers here this morning { I am totally objective.

19

I'm not involved with a bicycle company.

20

the tour business.

21

for over ten years, actually over 14 years.

22

the sunrise tour exclusively, okay, and I came here

23

just to mention a couple of points in hopes

24

that the Council will take this into consideration.

25

I know this is a very heated issue and there's good

I am in

I do drive vehicles up mountain
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1

points. I've had -- I've heard some very informed

2

points.

3

naive points, okay.

4

although I could, at everybody.

5

•

I'm not here to point a finger,

The science city, I drive every morning.

I

6

have never met crazier drivers than transporting

7

your people up to science city every single morning.

8

Cutting corners, cutting me off, speeding, okay, if

9

you don't believe me, you talk to the -- at the

10

kiosk at the rangers of that place.

11

least, probably, 50 complaints about your drivers,

12

the white vans with the gold stripe, you know what

13

I'm talking about.

14

talk to you personally.

15

Now, we're talking about cars, okay.

16

where I defend the bicycle companies versus some of

17

the independents.

18

people( but for every bicycle person I've had

19

trouble with, I've had trouble with cars the same.

20

People are gawking, driving too slow, not paying

21

attention what they're doing.

22

•

I've also heard some very unbelievably --

I've made at

If you question me on this, I'll
It is one of my pet peeves.
It is true

I have nothing against these

Yes, we all had employees

- there's not an

23

employee in the world -- employer in the world that

24

hasn't had favorite employees versus ones that won't

25

abide by the rules.

It has to do with enforcement,
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1

okay.

2

that the bicycle companies, whatever it takes to

3

enforce their people to abide by their restrictions

4

would be enforced.

5

Now, it was mentioned a couple times between the

6

organized bicycle tours and the independents.

7

seen them both and I couldn't agree more.

8

independents are not manipulated.

9

governing thing.

I would agree with that.

I've

The

They have no

There's nothing to tell the people

10

what to do.

11

They're going too fast.

12

out of control.

13

or anything else.

14

where the issue has got to be taken, not with the

15

organized bicycle companies.

16

•

I would agree from everybody's point of view

They're intimidated by the road.
They're wobbling.

They're

They have no respect for vehicles
Unquestionable, okay.

That is

Now, as far as supervision and the police,

17

I've already begged his forgiving because at the

18

same time I've seen police misdirecting, okaYI not

19

doing what they're supposed to do.

20

policemen, there are bad policemen.

21

the enforcement of your employees once more, okay.

22

And I've seen situations coming down that mountain

23

that they need to have more police, anybody.

24

in Upcountry, okay, I defy anybody to tell me to

25

drive down 37 or 377 on any given morning and your

There are good
Has to do with
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1

life

2

is in jeopardy because people are going -- a

3

45-mile-an-hour zone, if I drive 45 miles an hour,

4

give or take a couple miles so I won't create road

5

rage, I'm getting flipped off at the finger, okay,

6

by drivers, okay, flashing flashlights coming down

7

37.

8

no police there, and it's not the bicycle people.

9

If there is an issue, it has to do with enforcement

They're doing 55 and 65 miles an hour.

There's

10

of speed laws, the enforcement of the bicycle

11

companies to take care of their employees to make

12

sure that they do what they're instructed to do,

13

okay.

14

Now, to sum this up,

I don't want to take up

15

too much time.

I want to apologize to you

16

personally, because I'm pointing you out, and I

17

didn't mean to, it's just that I'm trying to make

18

some points here, that there's a broad issue.

19

not just one or two situations.

20

I live up there as well, too.

21

issue with the drivers than I do the bicycle people

22

okay, I do have trouble with bicycle people once in

23

a while.

24

to the employee.

25

no enforcement with hand signal r

It's

The publiCI the
I have more of an
l

And like I say, it comes right back down
The bottom line is no supervision,
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1

whatever, then you do have an issue.

2

you for your time.

3

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

•

•

Thank you.
If

not, thank you again.
Next testifier is Jimm Cramer.

6

7

Thank

Members, any questions for the testifier?

4
5

Okay?

MR. CRAMER:

Jimm Cramer.

Good morning, ladies and gentlemen.

Thank

8

you for inviting us and having this meeting this

9

morning.

Give you a little background on who I am,

10

I'm actually from Lahaina.

11

of the time on this island.

12

community affairs, civic affairs from day one.

13

of the things I take great pride in, and I know that

14

the County Council takes great pride in, is the

15

aquatic program that has been started on our island.

16

The safety -- water safety on our islands,

17

particularly Maui, has probably surpassed anyplace

18

else, and that's because of our County Council and

19

the people that are here.

20

a Lahaina aquatic center built.

21

in our swimming pool for the first time over there

22

with now Governor Linda Lingle, making this a

23

reality, bringing safety for our children on this

24

island.

25

That's been my home most
I've been involved with
One

Took me nine years to get
Charmaine, who swam

It's been a number one priority for me.
I am involved with the bicycle industry, have
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1

been for day one, from its very inception.

2

the printing business for a long time, actually

3

printed the very first rack cards for the bicycle

4

industry for Bob Krieger when he got the industry

5

started.

6

doing this forever.

7

on our island is unsurpassed.

8

State of Hawaii, has a long way to go before they

9

become what I consider bike friendly.

10

•

•
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Been in

I'm personally a bicycle guide tour.

Been

And I think the bicycle safety
Maui County, the

The issues that are being brought before you

11

has been issues in every state, and it's true of our

12

own state.

13

facilities, turn-outs, whatever you happen to

14

recommend.

15

will be happy to serve on any committee that you'd

16

like to form to discuss safety issues with not only

17

bicycles, but anything else as well.

18

Tavares, when I was talking to him about the aquatic

19

center, thought that we had the best beaches in the

20

world, and we didn't need a swimming pool, but the

21

people that lived on our island didn't know how

22

to swim.

23

things that are wrong with our bicycle industry,

24

there are things that need to be done to improve it.

25

We're here today to do that.

To become bike friendly is to provide

I personally will tell the County that I

That was wrong.

Just like some of the

I hope that we do.
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1

Just as an example, this happens to be the

2

bicycle safety instructions that are given to the

3

people that are doing this bike ride.

4

venture to say that most of the people doing this

5

bike ride with a guided tour are probably coming

6

away with more bicycle safety instructions than

7

they've ever had in their life, and that it has made

8

our industry safe.

9

that occur, I think if you compare that with

I would

The few deaths, the accidents

10

any other industry, motorcycle riders, even

11

automobiles, our bicycle industry is extremely safe.

12

We've done a great job in making what it should be.

13

It's part of Maui.

14

This adventure down Haleakala is the greatest

15

experience anyone can have.

16

haven't done this bike ride, you know, whether

17

you're a resident, a County Council Member, that you

18

should go on a guided tour.

19

it's about.

20

you'll realize that the implementation and the

21

encouragement of this industry is imperative for our

22

island.

23
24

•
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25

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

I recommend that if you

Find out exactly what

Once you have that understanding,

Thank you.

Members, any questions for the testifier?
not, thank you very much.
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Next testifier is Richard Goodenough.

1

2

MR. GOODENOUGH:

3

Committee Members, Chairman, citizens.

4

Richard Goodenough.

5

Bicycle Safaris.

6

tour industry in 1983 with Bob Krieger.

7

and I had 50 percent interest each in Cruiser Bob's.

8

So the bicycle industry to me is something that's

9

very -

10

•

My name is

I'm the owner of Maui Downhill

I'm also co-founder of the bicycle
Bob Krieger

very important and very sacred.
I have -- to start off with, we've all heard

11

the stories. I've got some good news and some bad

12

news.

Well, I'm here today not to give any bad

13

news.

I'm here to say I've got some good news and

14

some good news.

15

is this.

16

number of bicycle tours at sunrise from a maximum

17

that they saw at one time of 35 bike tour vans up

18

there, They reduced the number to 19.

Okay, the first piece of good news

Haleakala National Park has reduced the

Now, that doesn't mean that there's 19 tours

19

•

Good morning, ladies and gentlemen,

20

up there every day because we have seasons.

We have

21

seasons that are productive and we will fill the 19

22

stalls.

23

They're working on the final plan that may take

24

another year or two.

25

During the month of November -- and I keep daily

This is an interim plan, by the way.

But the interim plan is 19.
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1

statistics -- we've seen tour -- tours as low as

2

maybe ten or 12 to the maximum of 19

3

the busy Christmas season

4

40 percent reduction and there won't be any more

5

than 19 sunrises going down Baldwin Avenue

6

so that should make the community a little happier.

•

but going into

you're going to see this

The second piece of good news

7

•

t

t

t

t

not 35 t

there is now a

8

moratorium by the National Park

there are no new

9

bicycle tour permits issued for the sunrise and they

t

10

are even limiting some of the day permits.

11

won't be a large number of new operators coming into

12

the industry to cause even more congestion in the

13

community.

14

Regarding regulation

t

So there

I've heard discussion

15

about the regulation t and I wanted to say that

16

personally I'm not in favor of additional

17

regulation

18

have now t and I want the Committee to be aware of

19

what that is.

20

vehicle laws

21

important regulation that we have to comply with.

22

We have the same laws

23

Bicyclists have to comply with those as well as the

24

motor vehicles t and we are given the right, as a

25

cyclist

t

t

but I am in favor of regulation that we

t

We are regulated by the State motor
and that's probably the most

t

the motor vehicle laws.

to use the road and have the same rights
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1

and responsibilities as motorists.

2

MS. KAWASAKI:

3

MR. GOODENOUGH:

Three minutes.
Secondly, PUC regulation.

Thirdly, the

4

National Park regulates us, and, fourthly, the

5

companies that operate these tours regulate their

6

employees.

7

about is a plan, a working plan, an ongoing plan and

8

address the concerns of the community with regard to

9

the safety operations of the bicycle tours down

What I came here today is to talk to you

10

Haleakala.

11

companies have operational safety plans, they

12

use them.

13

day.

14

this isn't about blame.

15

pointing fingers. This is about trying to take a new

16

start on how we can make things better, better and

17

safer for Maui community and for the bikes and for

18

the motorist public.

19

community and find ways to implement improvements

20

and suggestions.

21

•
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Everyone needs to know that the

Maui Downhill has one.

We use it every

Not to find fault today, I don't -- you know,
This isn't about shame,

Let's work together as a

Just a couple of the suggestions.

Community

22

association safety committees.

I've been to some of

23

the general meetings.

24

pointing and nothing gets accomplished.

25

to the committees -- the safety committees such as

There's just a lot of finger
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1

the Kula Committee.

2

them input as well as all the other community

3

associations that want to have input on committee

4

level.

5

perspectives and help that move along.

I want to be a part of giving

I want to be there.

I want to give them my

6

Bike companies and motorists need to obey all

7

the safety laws, share the roads with respect to all

8

users.

9

the roads -

And eventually maybe we'll be able to widen
widen the roads and get the paved

10

shoulders or install paved pUll-outs.

11

someplace around six or seven of them down Baldwin

12

Avenue would make a huge difference, and that was

13

suggested by the bike tour industry in 1985, 20

14

years ago, and it still hasn't happened yet.

15
16
17

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

I feel that

Mr. Goodenough, you've gone beyond the

four minutes.

Thank you very much.

Members, is there any questions for the

18

testifier?

19

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Member Anderson.
Thank you, Chair.

20

Mr. Goodenough, if there was a ban -- let's put it

21

this way.

22

to end their tours at the end of Crater Road, how

23

would you perceive that to impact your company?

24

•

113

25

MR. GOODENOUGH:

If all bike tour companies were required

Well, it would have, I think, quite an

impact on the company and on the industry.
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wouldn't be in favor of stopping the bicycle

2

tours -- all of the bicycle tours at a designated

3

location such as that.

4

that

5
6

•

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

What I would say, though, is

Mr. Goodenough, I want you just

to answer my question.

7

MR. GOODENOUGH:

8

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

9

MR. GOODENOUGH:

Yes.
How would it impact you?

Well, the length of the tour would be

10

shortened considerably and there would be an

11

experience that a visitor didn't get to experience

12

safely.

13

14
15

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

So you wouldn't be able to

charge as much, is that how it would impact you?
MR. GOODENOUGH:

Well, I'm not talking about charges.

I

16

could charge whatever I wanted.

17

what the visitor's experience to see the beauty of

18

Maui would be and the right to, for instance, see

19

the eucalyptus forest on the State highway going

20

down to Pukalani.

21

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

22

•
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I'm talking about

Well, they could take a drive to

do that, too.

23

MR. GOODENOUGH:

Or a bicycle.

24

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

25

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

All right, thank you.

Thank you.
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testifier?

If not, thank you very much.

The next testifier is Mike Perry.

3

MR. PERRY:

Good morning, and thank you for hearing me

5

this morning.

6

along Haleakala Highway in one of the flatter

7

sections.

8

basis.

9

week or any time of the day.

10
11

•

Members, any more questions for the

1

4

•
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I'm a resident.

I'm a homeowner

I get to experience this on a daily

I can answer your questions any day of the
I work out of my

office in my home.
I think, you know, I'll just say one thing,

12

unregulated -

well, let me start with this.

I

13

can't imagine why our County allows there to be a

14

business that completely breaks the law every single

15

day in almost everything they do.

16

companies drive up the hill, 4:00 in the morning, at

17

least 50 miles an hour past my house.

18

the law on the way up.

19

Highway.

20

are statutes and ordinances about slow moving

21

vehicles that have been on the books for a long

22

time, and those vehicles are supposed to move off

23

the shoulder if they're going slower than the speed

24

limit or the flow of traffic, okay.

25

every single time I drive down the hill and I've

These bike

They break

They come down the Haleakala

When they get to the County road, there

This happens
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1

been there six years.

2

ridiculous.

3

regular basis, three companies in a row.

They get

4

very spread out.

I

5

mean, they're blocking up two or three miles I've

6

seen of that roadway, okay.

A half a mile, no way.

8

you know, this is

9

them -- you know, I've talked -- I've heard

10

everybody's talking about regulation, yeah,

11

everybody -- almost everybody here believes we've

12

got a problem.

13

the bike companies.

14

this Council -- why is the Mayor -- it's been

15

there's been deaths, accidents, you know, if they

16

obeyed the law and got out of the way, which we

17

could have them do very easily, doing one thing

18

would accomplish this.

19

•

These companies block up regularly on a

We have to deal with this every single day,

7

•

The situation's getting

- it's a simple solution.

Make

They're crying for regulation, even

I'm a biker.

Why aren't we doing it?

Why is

I ride bikes all the timet

20

usually uphill, but they could take the van out of

21

the road.

22

the road that we have to deal with.

23

in spots ten miles an hour getting up over a hill,

24

and, guess what, it's up -- you know, why isn't

25

it -

They're creating a barricade coming down
They are going

why isn't it up to the County policies and
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1

road ordinances, those are the policies we should be

2

following.

3

those things -- you know, we should be able to ride

4

down the street and not have to be going ten miles

5

an hour and be at the whim of some bike tour leader,

6

young leader, you know, 18, 19, 20, not all of you,

7

you know, yeah, let's talk about some of the real

8

leader safety people here.
In this room I've heard from a safety guide

9

•

•

Let's make them follow those first, get

10

saying

11

the rules and regulations.

12

down Haleakala Highway, a lady in front of me, we

13

get to the dotted line, after waiting quite a

14

distance down a road, around a corner, we get to a

15

passing lane. What does he do?

16

pass, the van starts swerving off the road, starts

17

pushing -- actually forcefully trying to block the

18

road and from her passing.

19

lady trying to -- she makes it bYI we both make it

20

by, the guy's yelling and screaming, vulgar

21

language, and this person is in this room right now

22

claiming to be the safety coordinator for his

23

company, okay.

24

MS. KAWASAKI:

25

MR. PERRY:

claiming that he is responsible for all
That very person corning

The lady starts to

I'm right behind the

Three minutes.

When we got past this caravan of people, we
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1

get down the road and here's the bike leader, turned

2

around, blocking the road again with the finger

3

pointing right at this lady and me -- well,

4

actually, I was fine because I'm just following her.

5

He was being all smiley and happy with me, but,

6

yeah, we don't need this on our roadways.

7

aloha?

8

regulate.

9

telling you they want to be regulated.

I mean, wow.

Yeah, regulation.

Is this
Let's

Even the bike companies, they're already

10

more regulation.

11

blaming us, the citizens, who try to take their kids

12

to work every day.

13

the way and they had a leader in the front and a

14

leader in the back, there would be no trouble.

15

There's no one -

16

guardrail comes in tight to a road where they could

17

not pullover far enough for a car to get by and

18

they're very small areas.

19

MS. KAWASAKI:

20

MR. PERRY:

It's a problem.

They need

And they're

If they just got the van out of

there's maybe two spots where a

Four minutes.

Okay.

No van, no problem.

You know, pull off

21

to

22

the side of the road, they don't have any trouble.

23

Now we're up to the judgment -- we have to live to

24

the judgment of these leader guys that say, oh, we

25

don't have enough room right here to pull all the

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

PW 11/28/05

•

•

119

1

way over.

2

dirty?
AnywaYt that's all I've got to say.

3

We're

4

going to

5

themselves t when they're obviously not capable and

6

they can't enforce the rules of their own companies

7

on a consistent basis and we pay taxes.

8

to do this drive every daYt if you had to put up

9

with this and the road rage thing t there's

- we shouldn't let them self-regulate

If you had

10

going to be serious accidents and it's going to be

11

serious consequences and it needs to happen now.

12

can't wait any longer.

13

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

14
15
16

18

It

Thank you t Mr. Perry.

Members t any questions for the testifier?
Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Thank you

t

Chair.

Mr. PerrYt when you say Haleakala HighwaYt do

17

•

What t they don't want to get their tires

you mean the Upper Kula Highway?

19

MR. PERRY:

Yes, I do.

20

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

21

MR. PERRY:

So that would be Kekaulike --

Right after it becomes Crater Road, it comes

22

down and then turns right, there's a stretch that's

23

pretty flat t and t you know t we also get the

24

unregulated riders t I know a lot about.

25

getting a bad rap here.

They're

There's not a single
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1

unregulated bike company here because those people,

2

by the way, yeah, they're on their own, but it's

3

their lives at jeopardy.

4

Those people go down and they stay on the shoulder

5

and they stay out of the way.

6

unsafe thing where people think there's a bike in

7

front of them and it's this far away, they feel safe

8

just following along, but, whoa, they didn't realize

9

that that bike is a lot farther now and when they

10

Actually, I think guided tours are much more

12

unsafe than if you just gave some people good

13

directions and gave them a map and headed them down

14

the hill.

15

to stay off to the right. Probably -- maybe we'd be

16

better off, maybe not.

17

that should go into that, but certainly a van

18

blocking the road creating road rage --

19
20

•

You know, it's this

hit that corner, they can't hold it.

11

•

They take it personally.

They'll stay in the bike lane.

CHAIR PONTANILLA:
question.

There's probably some study

Mr. Perry, I think you answered the
Thank you.

21

MR. PERRY:

22

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

23

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

24

MR. MUCHETTI:

25

Tell them

Okay

I

good.

Thanks.
Thank you, Mr. Perry.

Next testifier is Jimmy Muchetti.

Aloha.

I'd like to thank the Committee,

Chairperson for the opportunity to have this aired.
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1

I'm encouraged listening to the openness of some of

2

the bike company owners, their willingness to want

3

to work with the public.

4

start.

5

though.

6

tour van drivers with the bike companies pulling

7

over and their people getting out, going across the

8

roadway, and I've gone back there, and I hate to say

9

it, but I have -- and I will produce for you

10

video -- and they are going to the bathroom.

11

There's toilet paper and there's feces and it smells

12

terrible and there's rubbish there, so that is

13

happening.

14

I think that's a good

I'd like to make a couple corrections,
I have personally witnessed tour buses

The regulations are not happening.

These

15

people are coming down, you have a transitory

16

population.

17

drivers, so you've got some drivers that have a lot

18

of aloha and they're behind you -- I mean you're

19

behind them, excuse me, I'm a little nervous

20

behind them and they see you and they're trying

21

their best to get over.

22

you have people who maybe somebody behind me honks,

23

so the driver's flipping the bird and now he's not

24

going to pullover.

25

and make us just wait and wait and wait.

You have a huge turnover in the

On other times

l

I

you're

of course,

He's going to punish all of us
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So I have a couple of things I just wanted to

1

2

run by here.

3

moratorium on any new companies.

4

there should be any new licenses given out until

5

maybe ever, and especially until this situation is

6

dealt with.

8

Department -- I'm not sure who's responsible -- who

9

changed the yield sign at the Kekaulike Road and the

10

Crater Road to a stop sign.
However, I'd also like to say that since

11

•

I don't think

Number two, I'd like to thank the

7

•

I think we need an immediate

12

they've done that, I've sat and watched and the bike

13

tour companies come down and go right through the

14

stop sign, get right into the Kekaulike Highway, and

15

stop their vans sometimes parallel, let their bikers

16

go, boom, boom, boom, and then they take off again.

17

I also believe that they should eliminate the vans,

18

put a walkie-talkie on the guy in the back,

19

walkie-talkie on the guy in the front.

20

have your safety issues.

21

someplace and be on call in case of emergencies.

22

The drivers can carry first-aid kits and things they

23

need.

24

competency should be done at the baseyard.

25

shouldn't wait until they get to the crater to see

You still

The van can go down

I think the test -- the rider's test for
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if someone can maneuver a bike.
Mr. Maxwell -

2

3

he was up there and a lady was up on the bike and

4

she flipped over and broke her ankle while she was

5

up there.

6

get them up there, and then tell them they can't

7

ride.

8

where they make them go around cones and stuff

9

before they let them go on the vehicles.

Do something like they do with the Harleys

11

think, should say what the laws that are applied to

12

the bicycles are.

13

the public of accidents and deaths.

14

mentioned the deaths -- a few deaths, I think they

15

said.

16

13.

17

that that number may be higher, and there's been

18

over a thousand lawsuits since this -- the bike

19

companies started.

20

•

So don't get the money in your pocket,

The written handouts to their customers, I

10

•

Uncle Charlie was telling me

I think they should also inform
Someone

One death is too many, and I heard as many as
I've talked to Mr. Krueger's office and I heard

The proper agencies, I think, like the

21

Federal/ State, County, let's take -- and go down

22

right now where you go from the Kekaulike to you go

23

to the Haleakala Highway, before the Hanamu and

24

Kealoha, turn off towards Makawao, those are passing

25

lanes there, and this is where, like the last
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gentleman said, where I have witnessed many, many

2

times where someone's tried to pullout and the van

3

has pulled out to block them, or I've been coming up

4

and see

5

somebody with road rage come around and I've had to

6

pull off the road to keep from getting hit head on.

7

•

8

voluntarily, right now, to make that a mandatory -

9

when there is a passing lane, make that a mandatory

10

pullover lane for them and get off the road.

11

spent how many millions of dollars 12 years ago to

12

widen the road there, the whole highway.

13

plenty of room right there now for bicycle lanes.

14

All we need is signage and some markings, and that

15

would take -- that would take care of it and that's

16

about it, really.

17

•

So I would like to ask the tour companies

I don't want to go on.

We

There's

Everything else has

18

been pretty much repeated.

I would just like to say

19

the last thing, again, that I think it is

20

encouraging to hear that the people

21

the first gentleman, Mr. Kramer I think his name was

22

that came up, I was very encouraged to hear these

23

people are willing to get together with the public,

24

with the different committees, and work with

25

something, work with the government and let's get

- especially
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this solved and let's cut down the deaths, the

2

accidents, the suffering, the liability.

3

last thing I'd like to say is I did speak to a tour

4

driver who's very good friends with the gentleman

5

who ran over the 17-year-old and I heard that he

6

just this last year went back to work and his life

7

has been traumatized from that accident, and that's

8

a shame.

9

And the

Thank you, Mr. Muchetti.

Members, any questions for the testifier?

11

Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Member

Mr. Muchetti, thank you very

13

much for all the letters that you've written and the

14

information that you've shared.

15

you live on Lower Kimo Drive, so how is it that you

16

have all this experience?

17

•

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

10

12

•
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MR. MUCHETTI:

I'm just wondering,

Actually, I caretake lower Kimo Drive.

I

18

live on Pulehuiki, so Pulehuiki is going towards

19

Keokea side, so 11m coming back and forth about a

20

mile and a half drive, so it's a daily basis, plus

21

I'm in the construction gardening kind of business,

22

so I'm going down to Miyaki's, you know, and going

23

down to the lower roads to go shopping, et cetera.

24

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

25

MR. MUCHETTI:

Okay.

As well as going to get my lunch at the
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health food store and that type of thing in Makawao,

2

and I've been doing that for 13 years, and, you

3

know, 13 years ago, before they expanded the

4

highway, you know, itself and it has gotten more

5

worse than ever.

6
7

It's not getting better.
You talked about certain bike

companies blocking downhill traffic
MR. MUCHETTI:

9

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

11

•

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

8

10

•
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Yes.
to allow -- I'm assuming to

allow the bikers to MR. MUCHETTI:

To stay in the middle of the road.

12

They're protecting -

13

doing.

14

the middle of the roadway, and what they -- and

15

what's going to happen if you pull and pass, you

16

know, they've got to coordinate all of their bikers

17

to get off to the side, and they're afraid that

18

someone is going to pull in and wipe out some of

19

their people.

They're -

I understand what they're

at that point their bikes are in

20

So I think they're doing it for safety

21

reasons, but the point is there's a very wide

22

shoulder there, very wide shoulder, enough room for

23

the bikes and the vans.

24

to be in that passing lane, no reason at all.

25

also, I mean, to go out into the other side and

There's no reason they need
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create that situation, which I said is dangerous

2

coming both ways, is -- there's no reason for that.

3
4

5

And so all the bike companies

are doing this?
MR. MUCHETTI:

No, I wouldn't say all the bike companies.

I would say I've had the personal experience of

7

trying to pass maybe four or five times and been cut

8

off, and I have witnessed it countless times,

9

countless times, both, as I said, coming up or going
down and seeing it, so

11

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

12

MR. MUCHETTI:

13

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

14

16

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

If not, thank you very much again.

Thank you, guys, very, very much.
And thank you for your diligence in

bringing this thing up -- forward.

18

MR. MUCHETTI:

19

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

21

Members, any more questions for

Mr. Muchetti?
MR. MUCHETTI:

20

Okay, thank you very much.

You're welcome.

15

17

•

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

6

10

•
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Aloha.
We really appreciate that.

Next testifier is Sherman Dudley DePonte.
MR. DePONTE:

I'm Sherman Dudley DePonte, and I live on

22

17529 Haleakala Highway.

Thanks for hearing me,

23

Council Members and Chairman and the public.

24

I've had an incident and I wanted to bring forward.

25

I'm a runner.

I did biking.

I did biathlons and I
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1

had my incident happen on Thanksgiving Day.

2

running up on Crater Road.

3

going up, and I was in the shoulder, which is not a

4

bike lane, but I was in the shoulder and I was

5

running on the edge of the shoulder right close to

6

the mud and the pavement.

7

the hill, and what happened is the leader said we're

8

not allowed to move out of this bike lane in this

9

area.

I do the switchbacks

These bikers came down

And I'm like running on the edge, you know,

10

kind of keeping my balance and staying on the edge

11

so I don't end up in the mud, in the puddles, and

12

the biker -- the leader came right down and I

13

hollered at him, I said, do you think I'm stupid or

14

what?

15

supposed to have some rights here running on the

16

side of the road?

17

going to be run over by him?

18

was right on the edge and clipped me.

You know, I'm a pedestrian.

Is that what

Aren't we

- you know, am I

And he clipped me.

He

Talking about aloha spirit, that guy lives

19

•

I was

20

here.

The rest of the people in that -

21

ride would say haole or outsider, foreigner, people

22

cared, they moved out of the bike lane a little bit

23

outside of the shoulder, not bike lane, and saw what

24

happened and they moved out and gave me a way that I

25

could run, I could just jog, keep my jogging and
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1

keep my pace going up the hill and no problem.

2

leader didn't do it.

The guy in the back, the van

3

driver, he kind of

you know, he's coming down and

4

he waved at me and it was like aloha, it's all

5

right, I have good aloha with all the rest of them

6

but the leader.
I'm not saying that all the bike -- all the

7

•

8

bike companies are in this pigeonhole.

9

good ones and bad ones.

There are

Mr. Muchetti came out and

10

said some things about it, a lot of testifiers came

11

in and said about pulling into the fast lane.

12

have witnessed it.

13

they try to shove off the road.

14

them.

15

flip me off and they P me off, you know, and it's

16

kind of like we're dealing with this on a daily

17

basis.

I

I have been one of them that
I got very angry at

Yes, at times I do flip them off because they

They were saying about women, they had the

18

•

The

19

women going to take their kids to school in morning r

20

and lid say, yes, my wife takes our children to

21

school.

22

also and she drives very slow and still she comes

23

back with tales of the bikers going down the hill

24

and dealing with them and what are they going to

25

pull off and let the people go through to do their

My daughter is now driving on that road
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thing l either go to work

3

come down

4

and Seabury Hall and all of this traffic converge in

5

that areal how about stopping it around that times?

6

MS. KAWASAKI:

7

MR. DePONTE:

I

seven to eight o'clock where Kekaulike

Three minutes.
Is that three minutes?

Okay, one more

minute.
In any case l the note

9

- that yield sign has

10

been taken off.

11

either police stay right there and watch it

12

good note at it.

13

regulating them selfl have them -- tell them

14

it's a stop sign.

15

Everybody StOPI bikers included l because that's the

16

law, I thought and have that.

It's a stop sign now.

The bike companies

I'd say have
take a

l

if they're

I

l

look,

StOPI and it means stop.

National Park Service, they have problems.

17

•

go to school.

How about regulating the time that they can

2

8

•

l

18

They have regulations l they're permits

19

doing their thing to watch it.

20

the highways to do that.

21

pull-offs.

22

bikes on the freeways.

23

there's traffic/ a lot of traffic on there.

24

It's --

25

MS. KAWASAKI:

I

they're

We need the rest of

We need mandatory

In the mainland they don't allow pedal
Why is that?

Because

Four minutes.
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1

MR. DePONTE:

2

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

MR. DePONTE:

6

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

•

Troy Tenga.

after Mr. Tenga.
MR. TENGA:

Good morning, Council Chair, Members, my name

10

is Troy Tenga.

11

Bicycle Touring Company.

12

today.

13

find out what everybody really wanted to say and

14

hopefully to - from there get as much information so

15

we could try to plan something together to come up

16

with a common solution.

17

•

Thank you.

And, Members, we do have one more testifier

7

9

If

not, thank you very much.

5

8

Thank you, Mr. DePonte.

Members, any questions for the testifier?

3

4

That's it.

I am the owner of Mountain Riders
I didn't prepare anything

I was coming here hopefully to listen and to

I've got a cold, so I can't speak very well

18

today_

I've heard a lot of very good points, and

19

I've heard some

20

misinformation, so it's been a trying circumstance

21

to sit here and listen to -- you know, it's a lot of

22

animosity.

23

to come to a common solution.

24

who would like to work together and we have some

25

folks who don't want to work together at all.

- probably some really good

I can see it's going to be a tough time
We have some folks
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It seems like we have, you know, a lot of

1

2

issues with the employees and stuff, and I know we

3

all do.

4

you know, 70 percent all are always pretty good, 20

5

percent are fantastic, and 10 percent are the people

6

we should get rid of and we do our best to do so.

7

As you heard before, we have seen significant

8

regulation and restriction.

9

November 1st, we're down to 19 vans a day from 35

We're not, as of

10

vans.

11

take away a lot of the traffic we had on the road.

12

I didn't know I knew Jimmy.

13

and gave me a bid on some landscaping, and so we had

14

a-- I didn't know-- if I had known it was you, I

15

would have given you a call.

So that's going to add -- that's going to

He actually came out

So anyway, we definitely have some problems,

16

•

We've got what we call the 20/70/10 rule,

17

and there are some issues.

We as a company,

18

Mountain Riders, we definitely work hard to do what

19

we can.

20

difference between the guided and self-guided.

21

not going to point fingers at any of us.

22

everybody tries to do the best they can. You know,

23

it's difficult sometimes.

24

unemployment rate in the state.

25

for, you know, our people.

I know the other companies do.

There is a
I'm

I think

We have a very low
That's a good thing
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We have seen tremendous growth, you know, for

1

2

the island. Upcountry wise

3

moved to Haiku from Kihei after being there for 12

4

years.

5

years and I've seen the increase.

6

new construction going up everywhere, so we're

7

coming into conflict.

8

talked about-- you know, I can't go into trying to

9

fill all of the misinformation claims.

- I live in Haiku.

I

I've been in Haiku now for three and a half
I mean, there's

You know, there are issues

We tend to

10

go through Makawao not all day long.

11

are dispersed trips, but our groups come down

12

sunrise for about an hour and a half from that

13

crucial 8:30 to 10:00 o'clock time, then we have

14

other trips that come up at about 7:30.

15

afternoon -- and they start coming down, oh, a

16

little bit later, about, you know, 10:30, 11:00

17

o'clock, so it isn't all day.

18

concentration of the traffic is definitely in the

19

morning time.

20

conflicts.

21

•

133

I mean, there

In the

The most -

the

That's where we're running into the

So, you know, I definitely-- we want to come

22

here to try to come up with some kind of common

23

solution.

24

quickly, I would just like to say if my people

25

weren't humble and respectful for you,

If I could address the crowd real
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sorry for that and I'll do everything I can to try

2

to accommodate you on that.

3

give Jimmy and some other people my cell phone

4

number, and if you guys want to call me, and the

5

Community Association of Kula and such, if you'd

6

like to call me, that would be fine.

7

•

•

And I don't know, I'll

But I think that we're doing a pretty good

8

job of regulation.

You know, we are regulated by

9

the State and the Federal, and, you know, you folks

10

have some regulations on us.

We definitely want a

11

common solution.

12

know, we're not going to come to a common agreement

13

on everything, but we would like to work with the

14

County, work with the folks in the Upcountry areas,

15

and to come with a common solution for all of us,

16

and, you know, I'm very happy that we have

17

come in to take the time to come and talk together,

18

because we had this conversation, like it was

19

brought up ten years ago and we had a fairly good

20

solution.

21

paid for or who was going to pay for exactly what,

22

but there were some good ideas that were addressed,

23

and, you know, I'd like to follow up on that.

I'm a cyclist.

I know that, you

We don't know how that was going to be

24

So we appreciate the time and the effort that

25

everybody took to come on out and we look forward to
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1

working with everybody in the Upcountry area and

2

with the Council folks to come up with a common

3

solution for everyone.

4

and your effort.

5

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

10

•

And the last testifier that signed up for
this particular item is Rochelle Armadeo.
MS. ARMADEO:

Good morning, Members of the Council and

11

Council Chairman Pontanilla.

12

Armadeo, and I had to take some time off from work,

13

because I work for the Water Department, but I

14

thought that coming here today was really important.

15

I am a long-time resident of Paia.

16

in Paia and so do my brothers, and I have a home in

17

Paia.

My name is Rochelle

My father lives

I currently live in Kokomo and I travel

18

•

If

not, thank you very much.

8
9

Thank you, Mr. Tenga.

Members, any questions for the testifier?

6
7

So thank you for your time

19

Baldwin Avenue all the time.

I visit my family

20

during the week, weekends, pick up my mail.

21

office is still in Paia, and I am not happy with

22

this tour -- bicycle tour at all.

23

being is because I always feel very apprehensive

24

when I am coming down Baldwin Avenue and see the

25

tour.

My post

And the reason

And the first thing I do is I just let out a
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long sigh of disappointing, really, and then the

2

next thing I do is I pray and I ask God to give me

3

the grace and patience as I drive down to Paia

4

through Baldwin Avenue.

5

is because driving down Baldwin Avenue following a

6

tour is hair raising.

7

•

And the reason why I pray

And my experience, fortunately, has not been

8

dangerous, but I think what my concern is is there

9

are times when the van -- the van that is following

10

the tour will pullover, and I notice they pullover

11

when they notice that there's a long line of cars

12

behind them, which I appreciate.

13

afraid about is when they pullover, because Baldwin

14

Avenue is a winding road, theY're pulling over

15

around those curves, so when they pullover, myself

16

and the other people either in front of me or in the

17

back of me, now have the opportunity to proceed, but

18

when we proceed, we are either hugging the middle of

19

that lane or taking the other lane, which I know is

20

wrong and dangerous.

21

•
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But what I'm

My concern is when that happens and there are

22

drivers -- especially people that are not familiar

23

with Baldwin Avenue and I've seen this many a times,

24

they speed up and down the avenue.

25

coming down Baldwin Avenue would be some

My concern
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unsuspecting driver speeding up Baldwin Avenue, not

2

knowing that this tour is coming down, and myself or

3

somebody else is coming down also, being allowed to

4

pass.

5

with a car in front of me, who do I take out?

6

like I heard Mr. Borge say, do I take out the car

7

that's in front of me or do I take out the 12 plus

8

people on my right hand side, you know, I hope

9
10

•
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MS. KAWASAKI:
MS. ARMADEO:

If the occasion occurred where I was faced
Just

Three minutes.
-- I hope I don't have to make that choice,

11

but I think what I would like the Council Members to

12

understand is we need to really take a close look at

13

the safety of both the bicyclists and myself, my

14

community, the people that need to drive these roads

15

all the time.

16

I wanted to share with all of you.

17
18

And so that is why I am here today.
Mahalo.

. . . END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . . .
PW-42

DOWNHILL BICYCLING TOURS (C.C. No. 05-318)

19

20
21

•

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Thank you very much.

Members, any questions for the testifier?

22

not, thank you very much for being here.

23

For those people that haven't signed up for

24

testifying and you want to testify at this time,

25

your request will be granted.

Is there anybody in
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1

the public that would like to testify at this time?

2

If not, if there's no objection, the Chair would

3

like to close public testimony.

4

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

5

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

•

Thank you very much.

Members, I know it's 12:10, and we do have

6

•

No objections.

7

another meeting at 1:30.

What the Chair would like

8

to do is to have comments done by -- and only

9

comments, because the Chair is intending to defer

10

this item and continue on this particular important

11

issue regarding downhill bicycling.

12

lot of good stuff, a lot of bad stuff that needs to

13

be corrected, and I'm sure both the tour industry as

14

well as the community will be working together,

15

hopefully, to come to a win-win situation.

16

this time I would like to call on the Department of

17

Transportation, Charlene.

18

State of Hawaii Department of Transportation.

19

Charlene Shibuya.

20

MS. SHIBUYA:

21

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

22

MS. SHIBUYA:

We did hear a

So at

Charlene represents the

You wanted me to comment?
Yeah, just a brief comment.

Actually, in hearing all the testimony

23

provided, it really looks like that we really need

24

to sit down again, because it seems like this tour

25

industry has changed, and I live up Crater Road
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1

myself, so I've seen the industry change as far as

2

this so-called unguided tours.

3

as the Department, you know, for us it's-- well,

4

we're not in charge of enforcement, obviously, and

5

we're not in charge of regulating the business

6

itself, but, you know, I think our Department itself

7

can help as far as planning the so-called pull-outs,

8

you know, to be more bicycle friendly, as one of the

9

gentlemen commented, because these bicycle pull-outs

You know, and as far

10

could provide for not only tour companies but

11

actually, you know, just regular recreational

12

cyclists.

13

on is every time, you know, government starts to

14

plan a project, we get a lot of difference in

15

opinion, and I think that's why it's important for

16

us to sit down so that we can coordinate to make

17

sure that the pull-outs do get placed in logical

18

locations with respect to enforcement r the

19

topography, and, you know, as far as spacing, and,

20

you know 1 what the residents feel

21

things.

22

•
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But the other thing I wanted to comment

r

that kind of

So as far as a Department, you know, we're

23

willing to step in, and we actually have as a result

24

of the bikeway master plan, there has been some

25

money set aside for design for pull-outs on the
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1

Crater Road section and in a later priority to plan

2

improvements on the 377 section, which is from

3

Crater Road down towards King Kekaulike High School.

4

So, you know, we're starting.

5

Unfortunately we only have design monies at

6

this time, but, you know, I guess we're taking the

7

first step by listening to everybody, and that's

8

kind of what I wanted to say, that the Department is

9

more than ready to sit down with an appropriate

10

group that can properly plan our portion and try to

11

work with, you know, the enforcement agencies if we

12

need more signs or other kinds of improvements.

13

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

15

Thank you very much, Charlene.

At this time I'd like to calIon the Public

14

16

Works Director, give a few comments.
MR. ARAKAWA:

Mr. Chair, I just wanted to mention, as a

17

matter of clarity, the various jurisdictions on some

18

of the roadways which were mentioned in the

19

testimony.

20

•
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Crater Road, basically from the summit to the

21

boundary of the national park, is under Federal

22

jurisdiction, and the stretch of roadway off Crater

23

Road, makai of that is under the State's

24

jurisdiction.

25

Highway are also under the State's jurisdiction as

Both Kekaulike Road and Haleakala
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1

well.

2

roadways mentioned were like Hanamu Road, Olinda

3

Road, and Baldwin Avenue, and those are under County

4

jurisdiction.
I'd like to pretty much echo what Charlene

5

•

6

has mentioned. You know, from our Department's

7

standpoint we'd certainly be willing to sit on

8

either a subcommittee or some sort of a task force

9

to address this issue, and, you know, we'd certainly

10

be willing to at least be resource people and

11

provide recommendations to the Council in that

12

effect and working with the affected members of our

13

community.

14

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

17

Thank you very much, Mr. Arakawa.

At this time I'd like to call on the Police

15

16

•

If you go further makai, some of the other

Department to give some comments.
MR. KIKUCHI:

Yeah, speaking on behalf of the Police

18

Department, once again, just echoing what other

19

people have said, good points and bad points.

20

think, number one, we all have to remember a lot of

21

the roads that we're talking about, when they were

22

originally built, I don't think it was built with

23

this -- or designed for this amount of traffic or

24

this type of traffic involved now.

25

keep that in mind.

So we have to

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808)

524-2090

I

PW 11/28/05

•

•

•

1

142

Second part, I do believe, you know, bikes,

2

you do have the right to be on the roadway, so do

3

our main transportation, which is our vehicles.

4

have to respect each other and follow the rules of

5

the road.

6

in mind all the time that we're out there.

7

know, this was just brought to our attention today,

8

as far as this meeting is concerned anyway.

9

meantime -- when we were informed, we had asked our

10

traffic section and our District 1 commander, which

11

encompasses all of Upcountry and, of course, the

12

central area to sit down, take a look at all the

13

rules and regulations that applies to the road,

14

dealing with the situation, and instead of -- you

15

know, we could very well go up there and do

16

enforcement, but what we wanted to do was actually

17

sit down and talk to -- we're going to call all the

18

bike companies in and sit down and talk to them and

19

go over the rules of the road with them and try to

20

work it out that way first before we even thought

21

about going and enforcing.

22

straightened out, we were going to give a time frame

23

and go up there and do enforcement if necessary.

24

That was the original plan anyway.

But we didn't

25

want to catch anybody by surprise.

We wanted to

We

We all have to follow that and keep that

524-2090

In the

Once we got that all
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1

make sure everybody understood that we were coming

2

and leave it at that.

3

Chairman.

4

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

•

And that's about it,

Thank you, Chief Kikuchi.

At this time, Members, the Chair is going to

5

•
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6

recommend that we defer this item.

And I'm looking

7

at probably reconvening-

8

bringing up this item in our January time frame,

9

because I think this is an important issue that

not reconvening, but

10

needs to be resolved before someone gets injured.

11

As the Chief had stated, from now until that time

12

he'll be meeting with the tour companies to ensure

13

that the proper laws are followed in regards to

14

traffic.

15

And I want to commend the Kula Community

16

Association for some of the recommendations that

17

they had brought forward, and, you know, what I was

18

thinking about was talking to Ms. Krash in regards

19

to a working committee, along with the Public Works

20

Department, as well as the Department of State

21

Highway and the Police Department, as well as the

22

tour companies so that we can come down to a good

23

working plan that everybody can adhere by.

24

there's going to be some differences, but we still

25

need
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1

to chug along and make sure that, you know, we do

2

have a win-win situation.

3

So with that, Members, any more discussion?

4

Member Anderson.

5

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

6

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

7

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

8

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

9

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Johnson, but that's all right.

I'm sorry, Member Johnson.
I just wanted to --

You know, I was perfect for a while.
I just wanted to inquire, because

10

I'm not a member of this Committee, but I know that

11

when we were dealing with ocean recreation

12

activities permits in my Committee, we formed a

13

separate working group prior to some of the

14

convening of future meetings, you know.

15

So I'm not a part of your Committee, but I

16

would think that that is one of the ways that you,

17

as Committee Chair, could bring something back,

18

then, perhaps to your Members for consideration.

19

chose not to form a formal subcommittee and we did

20

bring everyone together, and then we had some key

21

components that we actually brought back to the

22

Committee, but, you know, I mean, I just offer that

23

because I think that sometimes if you have something

24

to look at on a preliminary basis, it's helpful.

25

We

So I just offer that as one of the ways that
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1

you, Mr. Chair, may choose to approach that, because

2

I did find that we were able to actually segment

3

components of the ocean rec activities permit, and

4

we're still working on it, but I think that that was

5

helpful, at least for my Committee work.

6
7

8
9

•

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Thank you very much, Ms. Johnson.

Member Molina.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA:

Thank you, Chairman.

I'll support

your recommendation to defer this matter until

10

January as stated.

11

because this issue can be many, many areas we can go

12

into, I just would like to get some guidance from

13

you in terms of the Committee members or Council

14

Members framing their questions as it relates to

15

this, is it your intent to have us frame our

16

questions specifically what is in the agenda item,

17

which is the concern regarding enforcement of

18

traffic laws related to this industry?

19

•
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CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Just to give us some guidance,

Exactly, so we'll keep on with the

20

agenda/ and in the meantime, do have a working

21

Committee that can take a look at the industry

22

itself to make sure that both the community as well

23

as the industry, you know, do have a win-win

24

situation where both sides are satisfied.

25

it's going to be very hard.

But, again, the main
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focus for today's meeting was the law enforcement

2

side.

3

earlier, that he'll be working with the tour

4

companies in regards to the traffic laws, I think

5

would be a step forward.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA:

7

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

8

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Thank you.
Members, any more -- Ms. Anderson.
Just based on what you just

said, Mr. Chair, it's not your intention, then, to

10

explore and possibly develop regulations to further

11

regulate the industry on State and County roads?

12

•

So I think what Chief Kikuchi had mentioned

6

9

•
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CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Not at this timel but we'll take a

13

look at that.

We'll take a look at the-- because

14

right now we do have some State regulations, some

15

Federal regulations that we need to bring together.

16

I don't know if the County has any regulations

17

if it don't have any regulation, maybe take a look

18

at the regulation for County roadways.

19

right now, three different aspects as far as

20

government is concerned regarding regulation, the

21

County, the State and the Federal government.

22

need to bring all that together.

23

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

24

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

25

this meeting is adjourned .
ADJOURN:
12:27 p.m.

and

So there's,

So we

Okay, thank you.

Members, any more discussion?
(Gavel) .
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